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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Council's Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for March 24, 2010 at the Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center is
now in session. Good evening, everyone, and thank you for having us here
tonight to review the Fiscal 2011 Mayor's Proposal. At this time, I would like to
call on Member Baisa to introduce the Members that are here as well as the Staff
that is supporting the Budget and Finance Committee this evening. Member
Baisa.
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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair Pontanilla. And I'd like to
take this opportunity to introduce our Chair to you, if you haven't already met
him. This is the most important man on the...on the island at the moment. Here
is the Chair of the Council Budget Committee, Joe Pontanilla.
We also have with us the Vice-Chair of our County Council and no stranger to us
Upcountry people, Mike Molina. So I'll go down to the end there and work this
way so I don't forget anybody. We have Sol Kaho'ohalahala, our Member from
Lanai. And next to him is Bill Medeiros. Bill is our Member from East Maui and
we'll be out with this folks tomorrow night. So we'll be traveling to Hana
tomorrow afternoon. And also at the far end here we have the famous Mike
Victorino from Wailuku. And we also have from South Maui, Mr. Wayne
Nishiki, and we won't say whether he's famous or not, but he is. He's a legend in
the County Council and it would be strange not to have him there. On the far end,
our Staff, we have Michael Geers. Michael say "hi". And next to him we have
Clarita Balala. Clarita is our secretary.
And I'd just like to welcome all of you tonight to Upcountry to the Budget
hearing and invite you to please enjoy the refreshments that were prepared by my
office. Thank you very much and we look forward to a great evening tonight.
We're excited to hear from you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. The Chair would like to also
recognize Arthur Suyama from Danny Mateo's office and Michele Yoshimura
from my office who are taking your names for public testimony. And I would
like to thank Member Baisa as well as the Baisa team for providing the
refreshments here tonight. So give a big hand to Member Baisa and her team.
. . .(applause). . . Thank you.
Tonight, again, you know, it's your opportunity to provide public testimony
regarding the 2011 Fiscal Year Budget as proposed by Mayor Tavares. The
Council will have approximately six weeks to come out with a budget for the
Administration to administer. As you know, because of the economy...economic
downturn, this is the year that, you know, we really need to tighten up the screws,
look for money, and I would like to ask you folks that whenever you see a State
Legislator later, if you could tell 'em that, you know, we still have a House Bill
1744 that is in the Legislature and this is in regards to the TAT. I know we were
very successful in not having the Bill...House Bill 1744 pass last year and we got,
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you know, our share of the transient accommodation tax. But again, it, it, it's still
in conference committee...committee so it's still alive.
So with that we'll start public testimony, but before we start if every one of you
that has cell phone, if you can put it on silent mode, or you know, if you can turn
it off. And for those of you that are providing public testimony tonight, the Chair
will allow you three minutes to provide your public testimony. And when you do
come up, if you can speak directly into the mic that's here in the middle of this
community center and provide us with your name and organization that you
represent, the Committee would appreciate that. So with that, the first testifier
this evening is William Watkins and following Mr. Watkins would be Kathleen
Souki... Soule.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

MR. WATKINS: Souki.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Souki. Okay, I got it.
MR. WATKINS: Thanks for coming out to talk with us this evening. My name is Lin
Watkins. I'm a paramedic up at Kula and we're also the primary flight crew for
the County Medevac. Not sure if everyone knows it but because of the County
Council and their agreeing to provide half of the funding for the Medevac, the
State agreed to provide half also. So because of your support over the last five
years, 275 or so critically injured patients or critically ill patients were transported
by the Medevac. Not only has Medevac benefitted from your support, but we've
been lobbying for a number of years to try to get 24-hour advance life support
service ambulances for Kula without much luck. We've gotten up to 12 hours
and once the helicopter issue came along and us staffing the helicopter that was
the tipping point for getting 24-hour ALSEM with service Upcountry. And I hope
you guys will consider trying to find a way to preserve what you guys made
possible for the last five years. Thank you for your time.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, you have any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Next testifier is Kathleen Souki, followed by Jerry
Wright.
MS. SOULE: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Kathleen — was Souki — currently
Soule. I just got married recently. . .(applause). . . Thank you.
I want to thank all of you for coming up here this evening. We really appreciate
you in our community. I am an Emergency Medical Technician with American
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Medical Response. I've been an EMT for the County of Maui for the last 14
years and I, too, would like to ask your support in funding the Medevac chopper
and appreciate the funding that you have provided so far for the last five years. I
also fly on the helicopter on occasion and I, you know, I do know the...of one
incident that stays in my mind and it was a woman on Molokai. She was in a car
accident and was critically injured and we flew from Maui to Molokai, picked her
up, and took her directly to Queen's Hospital to their trauma unit there, and she's
alive today because of the Medevac chopper and because of that capability. We
would not ever be able to take someone directly from an outer island or from
Maui directly to Oahu if it wasn't for the Medevac chopper and, and I see every
day the, the service that the chopper does for our community and it does save
lives. It increases our viability for EMS for the County of Maui and I would like
to urge you to please find the funding to support the helicopter for us again.
Thank you so much for your time. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. SOULE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jerry Wright, followed by Rita Silva.
MR. WRIGHT: Hi. My name is Jerry Wright. I'm...I've been the Supervisor at the
Hana Ambulance for the past 10 years. First, I'd just like to thank you all for
your efforts. I know you've got a very tough job to...in these conditions to deal
with the issues you're dealing with. I represent or I am...my, my station out in
Hana takes care of about 1,000 residents out there and an equal number of tourist
on any given day. The helicopter has been for us since its inception, basically a
lifeline for people in the community, both residents and tourist, anytime there is a
life threatening injury or illness, and we have depended upon it to a degree. I
don't think you can understand unless you've been in the situation I've been in
with someone's life in my hands and without that resource we may lose them.
There's a saying that we hear out there called "yoyo" — you're on your own — and
the helicopter has kept us from being in that situation many times. I can't tell you
an exact number. I know we have the numbers to give you but I can tell you that,
that the times when you need it, there is no substitute. The...we are...it's a...it's
a two-hour minimum drive for us if we can get a fixed-wing in there. It's a
minimum hour and a half before it can get there — the helicopter — when we need
it. We have a radio. We have... it's, it's literally a lifeline. I mean that's
not...it's not...no exaggeration. That's not hyperbole. That is literally what it is,
it's a lifeline for me and for the people out there. So anyway I can't strongly ask
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you enough that for the community of Hana, for the residents, and the people out
there, that you put the money for the helicopter back in. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Sir?
Mr. Medeiros.
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your
testimony. Are you going to be in Hana at the meeting tomorrow night because if
you are, I won't ask the question now just to preserve time.
MR. WRIGHT: I'm sorry, no, I'm not.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Let me quickly ask you this. Who does the
assessment and has the authority to make the decision to call the helicopter into
Hana?
MR. WRIGHT: It is...generally, we are. In fact, if an officer...a Police Officer or Fire
gets on the scene prior to us getting there, they're, they're able to ascertain how
bad a situation is. I mean if they come onto a scene and see that it's, it's pretty
bad, generally more in a...in a trauma situation than a medical situation. But in a
trauma situation they come on to a scene and see someone's unconscious, there's
basically a lot of blood or something like that, they can initiate the helicopter
immediately.
We...1 can distinctly remember a scene where we got on scene basically about the
same time as the...as the Police Officer had — it was a kid on a moped — and he
was unconscious and seizing and the Officer didn't know we were right behind
him and he was just about to initiate the helicopter and he kind of looked at me
and said, "you think?", and I said, "I definitely think". So it's...they can do that.
Generally, in a medical situation it's a little harder to tell so it's usually up to us in
that situation, and oftentimes, it's not used just on scene calls at...for traumas on
the scene or somebody's home. People often in Hana will bring their family
members to the clinic and we're stationed right at the clinic and after hours we
are, basically, the clinic staff, and in those situations we will initiate them from
the clinic or the doctor if she's on scene will...can initiate it as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So would that be the same for the fixed-wing
to be called to come in as the helicopter would be or is there a decision which one
is set?
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MR. WRIGHT: Generally, if, if they're stable and there's the time element that it can
be...there's a window that, that's wider for these people, I mean they need to get
out but they don't need to get out, it's not a life threatening thing, then we will go
to the fixed-wing. But if it's a life threatening thing...I mean the helicopter
decision is usually a pretty quick snap decision. I mean if you look at someone,
they're bad, they need to get out of here immediately, then the helicopter is our
first choice.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony and your presence
this evening.
MR. WRIGHT: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
MR. WRIGHT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you again. Rita Silva, followed by Adelaida Layaden 1sic1...Layon [sic].
Rita.
MS. SILVA: In the second half of the 1970s during the Carvalho Administration I
dedicated a piece of property to the County for road widening. We are in year
2010 and there is no road widening. Olinda Road is one of the most dangerous
roads in the County of Maui. The other thing about Olinda Road, there needs to
be a design made of a drainage plan and I don't mind paying my share of the cost.
I realize that times are tough.
Regarding MEO transportation, cutting senior transportation services Upcountry
from four times a weeks to one time a week, that, that's not realistic. Where is
your conscience and where is your ethics?
As far as the Senior Fair, that's one of our biggest events of the year. That's how
we make money to run our clubs. Please don't cut it out.
Senior club excursions cut completely from three times to zero times a year. You
thank us for our volunteer services, you appreciate our contribution to the
community, and then you cut our wheels. Kaunoa excursions cut from 271 to 204
a year. That needs to be looked at. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again, Rita.
MS. SILVA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For all of you that's here tonight, the Council is hearing public
testimony on the, the Fiscal Year Budget as presented by Mayor Tavares. So
whatever reduction in services or costs that's what the Administration is
proposing, not the Council. So please, you know, remember that.
. . .(laughter). . . Yeah, don't blame us yet. . . .(laughter). . . Mrs. Layaoen,
followed by Jen Welcome.
MS. LAYAOEN: Good evening, everybody.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good evening.
MS. LAYAOEN: I am representing the Haliimaile Seniors Club. My name Adelaida
Layaoen. I forgot. . . .(chtlekles). . . Anyway, we are so glad that this meeting is
over...is all over here and we are glad we came to tell what we like it to be done
with the help of all the Members of the Council.
Number one to me is the transportation which is very, very important. The main
thing is because we need the transportation to go to the doctor, for our... for our
shopping, and also the one when we come here for lunch. That is the main thing I
would like to tell and I am asking all the Members to please support this for in
every problem there is a solution for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Adelaida.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mrs. Layaoen, -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Adelaida.
MRS. LAYAOEN: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question for you.
MRS. LAYAOEN: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You can.. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Mrs. Layaoen...over here, dear.
MRS. LAYAOEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You, you...I don't know if you heard yet, but the
Mayor...the Administration — the Mayor — is proposing that from now on, from
July •Isrnow this is only a proposal.. .
MRS. LAYAOEN: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We need to hear from you guys what you think. It's
really important. If you ride the MEO bus and it's a County program, which most
of the programs are, -MRS. LAYAOEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you will have to pay $1 at least every time you get on
the bus. So if you go to the lunch, you pay $1. You come home, you pay $1.
You go shopping, you pay $1. You come home, you pay $1.
MRS. LAYAOEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How do you think this...the seniors can pay?
MRS. LAYAOEN: That is why I am telling because right now our social security not a
single percent is added and how could we live with this. Everything goes up
already. That is why I am asking the Council or anybody who is concerned for
everything that please find a solution for it so all can go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. So for people on social
security that would be very hard?
MRS. LAYAOEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Jen Welcome, followed by Perry
Mullins-McCall [sic]. Go ahead, Jen.
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MS. WELCOME: Good evening. My name is Jen Welcome and I'm speaking on behalf
of the Boys and Girls Club of greater Maui. I am a working mother. As we have
more budget cuts — I'm a intensive in-home therapist for Department of Health —
as more children are not being placed in foster care we have a stronger need to
have in-home services, very intensive, probably some of the more serious mental
illnesses. But as a mother, my son everyday goes to Boys and Girls Club where
he's safe and sound and well-fed and loves to exercise, which enables me to
continue to work, but it helps him to grow and develop and ensure the future of
our island. They've saved us from furlough Fridays. I don't know what most
parents would do. I'm fortunate and probably wouldn't work, but not everybody
has that ability and it's an incredible program. I...they have an outstanding
reputation and maybe some of you guys went there. So I think Boys and Girls
Club is one of the finest and please consider that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Perry Mullins-McCall [sic], followed by Jean Groden.
MR. HOLLINS-MCCALL: Hello, Council Members. My name is Perry. I attend the
GED Program with Hui Malama. This is my mom, Shareda [sic]. She also is a
big supporter of Hui Malama. When most people think about GED, they feel like
it's just a bunch of high school kids that were too lazy to pay attention to high
school or didn't want to work. But on behalf of me and my classmates, I wanted
to come and let you guys know that it's not true.
I, for one, choose GED because I was not challenged at high school whatsoever.
The classes that I needed to take weren't offered to me because of the great level
that I was in and those that were supposed to be offered to me, they didn't have.
And so I took my education to Hui Malama because I knew where I wanted to go
and I knew that college was definitely an option for me. And if I had continued to
go to regular high school I wouldn't have that choice, which is the same thing that
happened with a lot of the other kids who go to Hui Malama because with the
furlough days and so forth and so on we're just marking the education that we
needed. And I felt that going to GED would put me on that track that I need to
go.
I'm not saying that high school for everyone else is bad. I'm saying that this, at
this point, is one of the only options as a high school student that there is really.
If you want to get the education that you need and the education that you pretty
much do deserve because the kids that are there are pretty much the future of
every company that Maui has. 'Cause unlike, I don't know, we can be homeless
or something but we are here trying to better our education and we just want to
make sure that everyone knows that and that we're not just some lazy slack offs.
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We actually do have goals. But other than that I would thank you for your
support and I want to thank you for your County Budget line that has made it able
for me and my other classmates to attend Hui Malama.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for being here tonight. Jean Groden, followed by Poerava Tehiva.
MS. GRODEN: Hello, Council Members. Thank you so much for being here and for
listening to our needs tonight. I'm Jean Groden and I live here in Pukalani and
I'm the Academic Director at Hui Malama Learning Center — the same school of
the student that you just heard testify. And as the Academic Director I'm
speaking on more of a general term for our school and we believe that all young
people should find their learning experiences challenging, engaging, and
motivating, and at Hui Malama we actually can provide that for them as you will
hear throughout the next several weeks as our students come forward.
One thing that makes us very much unique aside from other public schools or
even some of the private institutions is that our classes are small, our building is
small. We can get to know each student personally and individually and really
find out what their needs are and help them meet their individual goals as opposed
to just a generic level of education. The public school system doesn't necessarily
fit every single type of person in our society today and we can place these
students where they will benefit the most from that.
We have really high expectations for our students and with those expectations we
do see significant success in both their academic and their behavioral choices. It's
their own effort and their own determination along with the support of the
teachers that allow this to happen. We serve about 30 students on a daily basis
between our middle school, our high school, and our GED Program. We also
have tutoring services. And our school runs from 9.00 a.m. until 3:30 p.m. so we
actually have longer school hours than a lot of the public schools. We also do not
furlough on Fridays. We are working and doing all this with a much diminished
resource than what a lot of the Federal and State funding allows. But we still do
all this because we know we can make that difference and we care and we see it
in the students, and when you see that change happening it's worth it to put that
extra time and effort into them.
A lot of what we do is hands on. We do garden projects and a lot of science
things where the students can actually get out there and not just sit in the
classroom and learn. There...we do the classroom core subjects absolutely, but
we do so much more experiential learning and we bring in a lot of guest speakers
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that introduce the job world to our students so that they can know what is
available once they achieve their GED.
Some of the comments that I have heard over the last year or so from the students
individually, we have students from many different backgrounds and they come to
us for many different reasons, but some of them have said, you know, I never had
fun at school before. And as a teacher and as an Academic Director, it's like that
is really cool to hear a student say that they actually enjoyed it. Another one said,
this is the first school that I didn't mind coming to. And it's like, okay, well,
maybe that doesn't sound like a big deal, you know, that you didn't mind going to
school, but for a lot of these youth, you know, they're teenagers. That is huge for
them to not mind going to school it's pretty big.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MS. GRODEN: Does that mean it's over?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if you can conclude, please.
MS. GRODEN: Okay. Thank you. So our belief is that with everyone's attitude we can
help them change and we can challenge them and we can create the place for
them where they can succeed. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Poerava Tehiva, followed by Elijah Borge.
MS. TEHIVA: Sorry, I don't know how to do these things so I'll just hold it.
. . .(holding
..
Hi. Good evening. My name is Poerava Tehiva. Thank you for being here
tonight and thank you for the past funding of the MEO AmeriCorps Program and
also thank you for the refreshments. Never had dinner, I'm happy I didn't.
And I'd like to start off by asking you to please continue funding the MEO Youth
Services and Transportation. I know at times there are maybe decisions that are
hard to make but that is a very important, important thing. The gas prices are
going up and the main thing we need is transportation to get to work, our
appointments, and it's really hard without it. I find myself walking to destinations
and it doesn't get...I don't get there on time. My feet won't take me from Point A
to Point B as fast as a bus would.
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Oh, I'm so nervous. I'm also speaking on behalf of the MEO Youth Services
Program. I am from Hana. Some of you may know my father, Hatota Tehiva,
who was part of MEO Youth Bank Program and I'd like to start off by saying that
is an awesome program to be funding. If it wasn't for that program, I wouldn't be
able to learn and know the things I know today. Although the things they do in
Hana is different from the things they do in Central. The things they learn are not
different. The activities may be, but the things they learn from it is the same. The
morals, the values that are no longer taught these days, it's now taught in these
programs. Without these programs students don't know how to treat others.
That's why we have so many gangs. The only gang I want to be a part of is the
one that's going to help the community and MEO Youth Services will. I know
that for a fact because Hana has changed ever since my dad joined MEO.
It makes me cry to see that it's going down. But to see it alive here in Central it
gives me a new hope for my younger siblings. The youngest of the family is
going to turn one and I would hate to see his life be totally different from how
mine's is. I'm living on my own with my fiancé and we have our own place. I
learned how to live with people that I never thought I could deal with in my life,
but because of this program I was able to deal with my boss, to deal with the
people I work with, to people that I don't normally like but learn to love anyway.
MEO Youth Services it helps you encounter and deal with characteristics that you
don't have at home. So it teaches you how to deal with the world in a way that
you cannot find in school. You cannot find... teach students how to deal with
people just by sitting down.
And now I'm currently with AmeriCorps working at Kekahua [sic] in Waiehu.
There I learn how to be a farmer. We're currently doing landscaping and I'm
proud to say that I am Hawaiian. I don't know who else is, but I know I am, and
it teaches me so many things of my culture and it makes me proud to say where I
come from and it makes me feel warm to tell others of where I am from. And this
will benefit me and all my children with the people I share my knowledge with.
And from this program I get a scholarship and a life allowance which helps me
live everyday and my ultimate goal is to go to school, get a degree, and that's
exactly what I'm doing now so that the future will be just as good as my present.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Elijah Borge, followed by . . .(change tape, start 1B). . .
Nicodemes Murrietta.
MR. BORGE: Good evening, County Council Members. My name is Elijah Borge. I'm
13 years old and attend Kalama Intermediate School. I have participated in MEO
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Youth Services for three years. Through the program I contribute over 1,000
hours of community service to Maui County by helping with beach cleanups,
clear invasive species, weeds, trees, planting native plants, working in taro fields,
talking and playing cards with senior citizens and helped out with the Charity
Walk and the Senior Fair. This program has encouraged me to be drug free,
tobacco free. We learn to be healthy by eating the right foods and watching our
intake.
Because the funds that you provide in this program, MEO Youth Services can
work with you like me, I mean with youth like me to help us make ourselves
better for the future. I'm first aid and CPR certified and know how to assist if
someone...if someone needs my help. I would like to ask you to please not cut
funding for MEO Youth Services Department and the MEO Transportation
Department. Because I am part of MEO, I get rides to the bus, I mean on the bus
from my school down to MEO for the classes during the week. It helps my
parents a lot and if you do start charging a fee to the bus, it will be more hardship
to my family and I would not be able to be a part of the MEO Youth Services.
Because of the type of community projects, I am a part of the MEO Youth
Service. It has already connected to my community that I'm proud to be a part of.
Maui is a special place with special people. People seem to care about Maui and
the environment a lot. I have seen that we take care of our senior citizens, our
environment, and our youth which is very important. Thank you for listening to
me today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Nicodemes Murrietta, followed by Lisa Rodrigues.
MP— MURRIETTA: Good evening, Budget Council Members. My name is Nicodemes
Antone Murrietta. I'm a sophomore in King Kekaulike High School. I have
attended MEO Youth Services for about two years. MEO Youth Services had
done...has done so much for me and others in many different ways such as being
role models for us, keeping us off the streets, teaching us right from wrong, and
giving us the opportunity to help and change the community. The places we go
teach us how to be a productive citizen for the future. MEO Youth Services made
a lot of us realize what we want to do for the community whether that be in
government, doing nature conservancy, or just weekly community service.
All of us real...all of us...all of us realize that there's a budget deficit, but at
MEO Youth Services all we need is our staff, transportation...and transportation.
And with charging money to ride the MEO bus you are taking this program away
from us. Without this program there would be...there would be many more kids
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on the streets, at home, or just in a bad place or situation. So I plead to you not to
cut our budget any more. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Lisa Rodrigues, followed by Zade Claxton.
MS. RODRIGUES: Hi. Good evening, Council Members. My name is Lisa Rodrigues.
I am the Unit Director at the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club and we tout and brag
the Hawaii State Youth of the Year, Zach Jarman. I, I understand that... and, and
the word is out, you know, of course everybody's got to make sacrifices, and, and
we're trying our best to, to compensate for that. However, what I wanted to
inform you and draw the picture for you of how it's going to look like for not only
the kids but for their families at the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club if, if services
were...or, I'm sorry, if budget was cut and we weren't able to make that up.
Like I said, we're trying our best to do that and currently we have 324 members,
okay, and we average a daily attendance of anywhere between 75 to 85 kids a
day. Some of them use the MEO bus transportation who we partner with to come
to the club from their schools, whether it be Kula School, Pukalani School,
Makawao School, or King Kekaulike High School, and a $1 a trip would really
put them in a...in a financial strait. I mean our membership is $5 a year for the
whole year and some of them can't even afford that. So, you know, they do
things around the club to make up for it. However, a $1 a day would, would just
be indescribable for them.
So how it looks like is currently at 85 kids a day, if we were to lose funding and
say, for example, it came out to be one full-time staff member, unfortunately, that
compromise is, one, the safety of all the kids in the club, okay, because the
ratio...a proper ratio is 1 to 25, okay, one staff member to 25 kids. And looking
at that if that's 25 kids that we have to cut, at least 25 kids. Then also our
programs would be cut because not every single child participates in the same
program at the same time. So pretty much it's going to become what's called a
drop-in center which...and which we're not. We currently are not and we don't
want to go there.
We engage our kids in programs. We have five different core programs which
I'm sure you guys have heard about before and know about. And we engage them
in several different activities that involve that program, okay. So anyways,
getting back to the part about the drop-in center, we don't want to turn into that.
We want to keep them engaged, keep them out of trouble, keep them from being
bored. 'Cause it's when they get bored is when they get into trouble. On
non-school days, for example, the breaks — spring break, winter break, summer
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breaks — we get anywhere from 30 to 40 on up children as well, and those hours
are even longer. They're from eight in the morning to six at night. After school
is from after school to seven o'clock at night. So our hours would have to be cut
with that as well, unfortunately, and which would also impact our families
because they can drop them off before they go to work, go to work, work their
whole eight hours, and come back and pick up their kids.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MS. RODRIGUES: So in other words, in closing, thank you so much. I also wanted to
mention our partnership with the Food Bank. They are absolutely awesome, as
well as Aloha Shares. We get a lot of things from Aloha Shares. So I thank you
for your time and your consideration for our program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA . Thank you. Members, questions for testifier? Seeing none,
thanks again. Zade Claxton, followed by Peter...Peter Welcome.
MR. CLAXTON: Hi, my name is Zade Claxton. I'm 12 years old. I have been a
member of the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club for three years now. I participate
in the sports such as dodgeball, football, whatever they have available, the weight
room. I am very lucky to have most of my friends go to the Boys and Girls Club
and once a month the club has a dance called the Youth Dance which is really
fun, which I appreciate them for having that for us. I give thanks to the club for
giving us something to do instead of just sitting home around all day, and yeah, I
really appreciate that. And the club has taught me so many very important life
lessons that will help me. I am very thankful knowing that the Boys and Girls
Club cares for me...my Boys and Girls Club. That's all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for testifier? Seeing none, -MR. CLAXTON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --thank you. Peter Welcome, followed by Jamie Gomes.
MR. WELCOME: Hi, my name is...hi, my name is Pete Welcome. I'm 13 years old and
I have been going to the Boys and Girls Club since 6 th grade. I like the sports
program. It gives me a place to go after school. I also like the weight room...the
weight room and all the programs. If I didn't go to the Boys and Girls Club, I
would go home and do nothing and be bored all day. I also like Kids Café and
Bistro so I'm not hungry through the day. Thank you for keeping this club going.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Peter,
question for you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Pete, who's your friends real quick.
MR. WELCOME: Zade Claxton right there and oh.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. These two guys standing next to you.
MR. WELCOME: Mark Fernandez and Martin Flores.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And they're both members of along with you at -MR. WELCOME: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Boys and Girls Club? And were you related to
that lady named Jan Welcome?
MR. WELCOME: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: She's your mother?
MR. WELCOME: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I just wanted to make sure.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Jamie Gomes, followed by Kaya Lara.
MS. GOMES: Hi. My name is Jamie Gomes and I'm 12 years old. I've been going to
the Boys and Girls Club since I was in the 4 th grade. I am also the President of
Torch Club. I produced a play in Girls Club, Super Crew, Power Hour, and art
and sports. Some of the things I really like about the Boys and Girls Club are the
activities, hanging out with my friends, and the staff. Some of the things I've
learned from the Boys and Girls Club is you can't expect to get respect if you
don't show respect. I use the MEO bus to go downtown sometimes to meet my
parents when they can't leave work to pick me up. And it might be hard to spend
$1 every time I ride the bus. Finally, I really appreciate all that you guys do for
my club. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe you want to introduce your compadres over
here?
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MS. GOMES: Yeah. This is Kamalei DeLima and this is Shania.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. GOMES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kaya Lara, followed by Sean Massetti.
MS. LARA: Hello. My name is Kaya Lara. I'm 11 years old and I am a student at
Kalama Intermediate School. I also go to the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club,
also known as the positive place for kids. I just want you to know what the club
means to me and my family. I like the Smart Moves Program, as well as
dodgeball, a game that we call "nerf ball", Girls Club, and Torch Club. If I did
not have a Boys and Girls Club to go to, I would bother my mom to take me
somewhere, but she really has to work except for weekends. If there was no club,
all that I've learned and earned would be gone. And then if I had no other place
to go to when my mom was working, I'd just be at home doing nothing all day.
So...yeah, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
if you can introduce your friends over here?
MS. LARA: This is my friend, Emma, and this is my friend, Joseph.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LARA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sean Massetti, followed by Penni Egger.
MR. MASSETTI: Hello. Good evening, Council Members. My name is Sean Massetti
and I'm a student at Hui Malama. This is my mom, Jacqueline [sic] and I live
here in Pukalani. I've been a student at Hui Malama for almost a year now and I
feel privileged to be at the school 'cause it's different than regular public schools.
We have smaller classes and it allows us to talk to each other more and gives us a
chance to learn new life skills. We get to cook from our, our organic garden and
we make salsa and pesto, all kinds of different foods. And another reason why I
enjoy the small classes is because of the individual help that we get really helps us
meet our... meet our needs.
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Another thing I appreciate is the Youth Services Program where we learn sex
education and how to have a healthy relationship and other life skills. During my
time at Hui Malama, I've learned about video and editing in our videography
class where we make PSA's that are broadcasted on Akaku, the public television
station, and we make PSA's about smoking, drugs, and underage drinking. We
also learn about our three core values that we have at Hui Malama which are
respect, responsibility, and accountability. We practice these by being respectful
towards other students and staff, doing our daily chores for our school, taking care
of the garden, and completing all of our work on time.
The other subject I would learn about is how to...is how to have a healthy
relationship by being honest, respectful, and responsible to others. Thank you for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MS. MASSETTI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Penni Egger, followed by Louise Corpuz.
MS. EGGER: Hi. My name is Penni Egger and I'm a parent of twins that actually attend
the Head Start Program in Makawao A. And I've talked before at Budget
hearings and I always so much appreciate you guys being here and every year I
cry and this year I've decided I am not going to cry. . .(laughter). . . So this is
my goal — can I make it through this whole thing without crying. And it was
funny right before we walked up, they turned around and they go, do you know
everybody's name. So I just want to tell you everybody's name, that we have
Sadie's mom, we have Juanita's mom, we have Kimmie A's mom, and I'm Penni.
And what we have at Makawao A is a preschool for our children to go to
Upcountry and I've lived Upcountry for 20 years. My kids were born on Maui
and they've grown up here to where I have ones that are at King Kekaulike High
School.
So to me, the kids are the most important thing of all because this is what Maui's
future is going to be is these little keikis that are not ready for public school but
they need somewhere to go. So we drop our children off at 7:30 in the morning,
same time I drop off my other children that go to Kalama and King Kekaulike,
and they're so excited to go to school because, you know, they're four years old
and they're going to school like their other brothers and sisters. So then I can go
to work and I can know that they're in a safe place. That they're with teachers
who are trained that are teaching them to write their name; they know colors.
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Today they came home with tongue depressors with peanut butter on 'em and bird
seeds. So when they came home, I got the huge privilege of going to put these
out in our tree and wait for the birds to come and to eat them.
So mostly I just wanted to ask you, truly from my heart to your hearts, to please
don't cut the budget to — okay, I'm not going to cry — to Head Start. Because
really what they offer our kids is not something that we can offer them at home.
You can't even offer them this at tutu's house. They go to a classroom and they
have friends and they learn all the social skills and everything they need to get
them prepared for when they go to elementary school.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. EGGER: Did I forget anything? No. I think that's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're the brave one.
MS. EGGER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me, this is MEO Head Start, right?
MS. EGGER: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. EGGER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks,
thanks again. Louise Corpuz.
.

MS. CORPUZ: Good evening, Council Members. I'm representing the MEO Planning
Coordinating Council and the Maui ILWU Central Pensioners Club. For the
MEO P&CC Club, I am fully here to speak on behalf about the buses for the
dialysis patients. No matter what you do in cutting the budget, I cannot see how
we're going to have money available to take care seven days a week to take care
of these people on dialysis because some go Monday, Wednesday, Friday; some
goes Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday. So it's a necessity.
For the Maui Pensioners Club of the ILWU, I'm the secretary, and our club is so
huge that we cannot afford to have our members park their vehicles on the
premises because unions have to go on. And so we have meetings four times a
year and we use the MEO bus to transport them in from the stadium area in order
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to have a huge group. And we have such dedicated seniors from the 1LWU
participating four times a year in meetings.
For the $1 come in to the club, $1 out of the club, I think our pensioners from the
HC&S and the Maui Land and Pine, I think they will have a little hit problems
because they pay for their lunches to come to our meetings too. And you know,
in the back...in the past years, pensioners were real cheap pay, and it's not like up
now. So I can see the hardship that will hit some of our pensioners because they
have to pay their own medical premium.
Thank you very much and I hope we can mend by doing the budget for the
dialysis patients and for the seniors that has to go here and there. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Louise. Members, question for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Next one is Lula...Lily Barawis, followed by John
Arisumi.
MS. BARAWIS: Good evening. My name is Lily Barawis. I'm up here on behalf of the
MEO Head Start. I am fortunate to say I'm a full-time mom. Unfortunately, I'm
the only one in the household. My household also includes four children, one
who is in college, one in high school, one in preschool, which is the one in the
Head Start Program, and a one year old. To an unfortunate hereditary defect,
three of my children were born with the cleft palate. So they had to undergo
reconstructive plastic surgery.
One major recovery was to have speech therapy and the staff at the MEO Head
Start has actually given my family the great opportunity to have my children be a
part of the program, which, you know, it helped them successfully thrive through
speech; giving them great community...communication skills, social
skillets...skills, which helped them learn to have the willingness to learn and the
willingness to, you know, just not be ashamed of not being able to speak properly.
But they knew that the teachers, how wonderful that they are, are there to help
better them as citizens in this world.
And also, you see my high school student, she had this opportunity 16 years ago
and she's turned out to be such a wonderful child. I'm truly blessed. I'm totally
lucky. And then now my four year old is going to go into kindergarten. She's
actually become a pretty strong person mostly due to the program because I am
again a full-time mother, and again, the only one supporting the household. But
mostly my one year old was born with the same birth defect so she will need to go
on to take the opportunity of taking advantage of this MEO Head Start Program.
And it would be nice to see the program offered the same opportunities as my
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other two children have successfully, you know, thrived through and become
better people in this world. It's also made them stronger people, which I really
see, you know, with against the community. The teachers are totally awesome,
therefore, I really support the program being continuously supported as far as the
future for my child and other children who may have to go on using this early
childhood education programs like MEO Head Start. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for being here tonight.
MS. BARAWIS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: John Arisumi, followed by Acacia Daniells.
MR. ARISUMI: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for giving me an
opportunity to say a few words. I've been thinking about what I'm going to say
tonight, but I would want to...I would like to talk about the history of MEO. Way
back when I used to be a...when I used to work as a union official, I heard about
MEO and Joe Souki was running the operation and later became your
Councilwoman Gladys Baisa. You know, I didn't realize until I retired and
became part of the MEO P&CC, Planning and Coordinating Council — is that
what it is?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes, you got it.
MR. ARISUMI: What they do for the people. And tonight before I came I said, well,
you know, how are we going to ask the Budget Committee to consider MEO's
request. Well, let me tell you, without MEO the senior citizens will be lost. You
know, when you think about what they do for the people, you know, it's not only
transporting, you know, people like myself to Lahaina for excursion or things like
that. That can be sacrificed if it becomes necessary. But one thing that I'm
concerned about is that you know we have so many old people depending on
MEO to go to the dispensary, dialysis center, this is where MEO spends a lot of
money for transportation. Now tonight I heard they gonna charge $1 one way and
another $1 backward, you know, to whom. Well, that's, you know, I'm sure the
senior citizens who depend on these buses can afford that, but my basic concern is
this, that if we don't have MEO and we don't have the senior citizens program
that's going on today, you know, I can say even myself that all I'm gonna do is
stay at home. You know, and what's going to happen when you only stay home?
Fortunately, I'm a, you know, apprentice farmer and I'm trying to farm up Kula.
Nice and cold, but I'm enjoying it, and once in a while I go to MEO meeting and
they take care of us. So I ask all of you folks in the Budget Committee, please
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consider MEO seriously so that we can continue to get the kind of service and
help that we are receiving today.
The ILWU Central Maui Pensioners Club donated $450 for the new garage or
shop, whatever, that they're gonna build.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MR. ARISUMI: And you know, we, we do our share, you know. But please consider
MEO.
One question I want to ask you folks here is that I want to know if any one of you
folks can give me an answer on the gas price on Maui. It's not connected with
this. . . .(laughter). . . But the gas price on Maui, if somebody can explain that to
me, I'll be very happy. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. I don't think any of us can explain that to
you. John, we do have a questions...a question for you by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I don't have the answer, Mr. Arisumi, so I'm
sorry. Question for you, what is, you know, the ILWU Pensioners Club, right?
What is the average pension per month? Give us an idea.
MR. ARISUMI: Pensioners?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, the pensioners now, not social security.
MR. ARISUMI: We, we have about.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Plantation. About how much?
MR. ARISUMI: We have about 100 plus members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. No, no, no. How much their
pension...their, their benefit per month? How much they get retirement?
MR. ARISUMI: Depends on how long you work.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah, but give us an idea.
MR. ARISUMI: I, I, okay, I give an...I work for HC&S for 27 years or 26 years,
whatever, and I retired when I was age 63 and I'm receiving like $240.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. That was what I was looking
for so that people understand. Thank you, Mr. Arisumi.
MR. ARISUMI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Acacia Daniel's. . . .(no
Betty DeLima.
response).
He's [sic] on his [sic] cell phone so why don't you go up, Betty.
MS. DELIMA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Betty DeLima. I'm the
Kula Community Club President. I'm also with the Kula AARP. I'm on the
board of MEO. I also am a member of the Planning and Coordinating Council of
MEO. First of all, I'd like to thank Mr. Pontanilla for answering my phone calls
when I call him; for being there when I ask him for favors for the Kula
Community Center. He has been my right arm as far as getting repairs for the
community center done. As far as getting a telephone put into the community
center which the County and Kaunoa would not pay for, and they wanted the
seniors to pay for, and it is a County program, the lunch program, and we felt that
the County should be responsible for the phone and he got that. The phone is now
installed. We had work done in the kitchen and they didn't give us hot water. We
now have hot water through Mr. Pontanilla. .. .(change tape, start 2A).. .
Once I retired and I became involved, I found that the County of Maui would be
totally lost without MEO. MEO does so much for the community whether it's for
the youngsters, whether it's for the seniors, whether it's transportation, whatever,
MEO is there. And if you take away the different programs of the seniors like
how — I know it's not your proposal, I know it's the Mayor's proposal — but if you
take it away, if you listen to the Mayor, and you take these... all these benefits that
the seniors have, the seniors will be homebound. They will have no place to go.
Take, for example, the Aloha Party. The seniors look forward to that once a year
and they look forward to having all of you there because this is...this is the time
they can communicate with the Council Members. They don't have any other
communication so they have this time to meet the Council Members to, to tell
them their problems to, to just to, to talk, and that means a lot to seniors — talking
story. Okay.
And the Senior Fair — all the clubs have a chance to have a little booth in the
Senior Fair to make...to raise money for their own clubs. The clubs...we
had...ME° has numerous clubs, okay. Each club has members and each club
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charges dues to their members. The dues that they charge goes back to the
members when they go on excursions. Like if they go out to a luncheon, the
members pay so much, the club from that dues pays the balance. So what they
depend on is the transportation, and if you take this away, most of the seniors, like
Mr. Arisumi said, most of the seniors will be at home and they'll wither away to
have no other means of transportation. Yeah, some of them have family here, but
the families are busy. They're working, husbands and wives are working, they
have no time. So the seniors have to make their own programs. They have to
make their own gatherings and we enjoy just meeting with each other and talking
story with each other.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MS. DELIMA: So I'm asking you to please take all of this into consideration. Please do
not go with the Mayor's Budget. Please help MEO with all its programs because
they are here for the community, not for themselves. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Betty. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you again, and thank you for broadcasting my services.
Appreciate that. Acacia Daniells, followed by Terrilyn Gamit.
MS. DANIELLS: Hi, my name is Acacia Daniells and I'm here to testify for Keiki
Kokua Thrift Store in Haiku.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A little bit closer, yeah. Good, good.
MS. DANIELLS: And I'm 16 years old, and I started working there because I had
community hours to fulfill and that was the first place I'd ever done community
service like a full job of community service and it just...it became...I was scared
at first, but I became like...it became like a family for me and I would love to
work there just to work there and help out. Okay. Like I learned what it's like to
help out and feel good about it. So, yeah, I'm not good at talking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. DANIELLS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa. We do have a question for you by the way.
MS. DANIELLS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It will be an easy one.
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MS. DANIELLS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We kind of couldn't hear you in the beginning. Can you
tell us again where this wonderful place you work?
MS. DANIELLS: Keiki Kokua Thrift Store.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Did everybody hear her? Keiki Kokua Thrift Store. And
where is this?
MS. DANIELLS: In Haiku, by the Haiku, Haiku.. .
MR. DANIF LLS: Haiku Market Place.
,

MS. DANIELLS: Haiku Market Place.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And what do you sell in there? What do you have?
MS. DANIELLS: It's a thrift store so it's like a bunch of like donated stuff like clothing,
and furniture and books and baby toys and all kinds of stuff.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All kinds of treasures, right?
MS. DANII-,LLS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And what are your hours?
MS. DANIELLS: Ten to five.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's everyday?
MS. DANIELLS: Every other day. . . .(turns around and speaks to someone). . . Okay,
everyday, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Everyday. The reason I'm asking you this is it's really
important that everyone understand what your store is about. Do you know what
happens to the money from the store?
MS. DANIELLS: It goes to foster care.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It goes to take care of foster children. So thank you very
much for your helping us know about this. Maybe people will support this store.
I think it's a wonderful idea and I know where it is and I try to donate. Whenever
I have stuff, I donate it to the thrift store, and I go there for books. So thank you
very much.
MS. DANIELLS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MS. DELIMA: Mr. Pontanilla, -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MS. DELIMA: --can I have your attention?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. DELIMA: I'd like to recognize all the seniors that are here today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All the seniors, please stand up. . . .(applause). . Oh,
Kula Seniors. Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nice to see you again. Terrilyn Gamit, followed by Craig
Kalawaia.
MS. GAMIT: Hi, my name is Terrilyn Gamit. I'm here in support of the MEO Head
Start Program. My first experience with MEO Head Start was 15 years ago and it
changed the course of my life. I was a teenage parent straight out of high school
and on my own with a three year old son living in a shelter. Their onsite center
was where my son attended. That was the first of many advantages that MEO
Head Start offered to me and my family. I was at such a disadvantage being a
teen mom with no skills, no experience, no money, and basically, no clue of the
real world.
MEO Head Start Program changed all of that for me. Having my son in an all day
program that was safe, educational, and fun allowed me to be able to further my
education with confidence and gain the skills and experiences I needed to ensure
my family's future, while my child was gaining the skills and experience he
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needed to start his. Without that, along with all of the other valuable information
and resources we were given on top of that, my family would not have the firm
family foundation that we have now. Please continue funding the MEO Head
Start Program to further family successes like mine. Thank you for listening and
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Craig Kalawaia, followed by Yolanda Castillo.
MR. KALAWAIA: Hi, my name is Craig Kalawaia. I came here tonight to speak on
behalf of the MEO Head Start Program. My two little boys were in it — Head
Start — and now my daughter is in it. Head Start has helped give my children the
education they deserve and have helped our family better ourselves by guiding us
to complete our goals and be the best parents we can be. This program has helped
us and many other families throughout the year. I know that our community
really needs MEO Head Start to give our children the best start.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again. Yolanda Castillo.
MS. CASTILLO: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Yolanda Castillo and I'm a
graduate of the Maui Farm's Family Strengthening Program. The FS Program
has helped my family today and we have strengthened our lives as, you know,
being in domestic violence, being homeless. And it has strengthened us where it
has brought my family back together and we have also learned how to be living
on our own as a self-sufficient family. I'm working as a home health provider.
My children are doing so much better in school. While in the FSP program we
learned how to be better parents, learn more self-cuff... self-sufficiency and
self-control. I found new and healthy ways to discipline my children. And so I'm
here today to please ask the County Council to continue to support the Maui Farm
for the FSP program because it is a good program and it has made a difference for
our families like myself. Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. And the reason why I didn't call the next person's name, please bear
with me, and if I, you know, kind of screw up on calling your name, please
pardon me. The next testifier is Kanoheaponoali'i Crabbe, followed by Diane
Logsdon...Logsdon.
MR. CRABBE: Aloha, my name is Nohea Crabbe. I am from the Island of Molokai. I
am here testifying for MEO's Rental Assistance Program. In January, I moved
my family from Molokai to here in order for my wife to finish her early education
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certificate at MCC. And it was pretty impossible being that I'm unemployed, and
currently collecting unemployment, to bring my family over — not just paying for
freight and shipping and flights and all of that stuff, but securing a house to live
for me, my wife, and my two daughters. And MEO's program has assisted us
with a little less than $2,000 in order to pay for our first month's rent and deposit,
securing a place for me and my family to live. And I'm just one person, but I'm
sure there's a lot of people in the County that do receive assistance from the
program. It's a good thing and it would be sad to see such a program go away
because it does help people that need the help.
The application process is time consuming and very — I can't think of a word —
but it's designed for people that need it, not for people that like to abuse the
system. It's money that goes to a good cause — taking people that would be on the
street, off the street, putting them under a place to live. And it's made a big
improvement in my family's life and has helped us take steps into becoming more
independent and not having to be dependent on programs like this. And that's it.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank
you. Diane Logsdon, followed by Adam Skelton. And Members, Adam will be
the last person to speak and we'll take a short break after Adam has provided his
testimony. Diane.
MS. LOGSDON: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for being here. We appreciate
it. I guess you were hit in the face with this bus business just as we were and it
was quite a surprise. It can't happen. I guess you know that. We have to have
the buses. We, seniors, depend on it, and especially, the Upcountry ones. We're
just tied off, kept from everything. We don't have the Maui Bus, except in
Pukalani, and it's a long walk from Kula down to Pukalani to catch a bus. So we
really need to have the buses and we would really appreciate it if you would not
suspend them. Thank you so much. Appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you, Diane. Adam Skelton.
MR. SKELTON: Good evening, Budget and Finance Committee Members. My name is
Adam Skelton and I am a member of Maui Youth Alliance. I'm requesting that
you continue your budget support of this outstanding program for the youth of
Maui. Through this program the youth of Maui meet once a month and together
visit businesses and other community organizations to learn what service they
provide for Maui. For example, we have visited the Hazmat team at the Kahului
Fire Station, assisted at community events, and also had a chance to see forensic
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work at the Police Station. As a member of this excellent program, youth get the
chance to learn how to keep Maui viable and sustainable in the years to come.
Also, we have the youth of Maui can give back to all the community and continue
this great tradition. Again, thank you for your time and service to the County. I
hope you will continue this vital funding and support of our program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank
you very much.
MR. SKELTON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ladies and Gentlemen, we've been going at it for an hour and a
half now so we...we'll take a short 10-minute recess and we'll reconvene. And
when we come back, the first testifier will be Mark Walker. So, Members, we
will reconvene at five after eight. This meeting is now in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

7:53 p.m.

RECONVENE: 8:07 p.m.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .( gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, we have quite a few of testimony to be heard tonight.
There's 48 that we need to complete. But for those of you that, you know, may be
at the tail end and cannot stay too long here tonight, you have opportunities to
attend the Budget hearings at the Council Chambers. We start at 9:00 a.m. and
we take public testimony as soon as we convene the meeting in the Chambers and
we're going to be doing that for the next six weeks. The other thing is that just to
let you know that we do have a Budget hearing at the Paia Community Center for
Makawao, Haiku, and Paia. Although it's Makawao-Paia-Haiku District, you
know, all of you are welcome to provide public testimony at that location, Pair
Community Center, and that will be March 31 s ` and we start at 6:30, so just to
provide you with that information. So at this time, I'd like to call on Mark
Walker.
MR. WALKER: Thank you. Good evening, Chairman, Committee Members. My name
is Mark Walker and with me this evening is Garrett Hew. We are the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman, respectively, of the Maui Food Bank Board of Directors.
The mission of the Maui Food Bank is to help the hungry in Maui County by
collecting and distributing food through community partnerships. Our partnership
with the County of Maui with this Committee over the years has been an excellent
one and has made a significant difference in our ability to provide hunger relief to
literally thousands in our community every month. Tonight I'd like to thank the
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Committee for its past support while we humbly ask that you continue...would
continue its support of the Food Bank by approving our line item appropriation
for Fiscal Year 2010. I'll put on my glasses — I can read better.
The Maui Food Bank is the only nonprofit agency in Maui County that collects,
warehouses, and distributes mass quantities of both perishable and non-perishable
food to the needy. And each year the number of people turning to the network of
charitable, hunger relief programs supported by the Food Bank has increased.
The Maui Food Bank coordinates delivery of donated food to individuals and
families in need through a network of nearly 100 agencies and program, including
shipping over 8,000 pounds of food each month to agencies on Molokai. We will
also be delivering our first pallet of food to a new agency on Lanai next month.
With the current economic downturn, the average monthly need for food
assistance has increased from 7,000 people a month to well over 10,000. And the
Maui Food Bank expects to collect and distribute over 1.5 million pounds of food
in the next year, including 250,000 plus pounds of produce and over 30,000
pounds of prepared foods. To date, which is July to now, which is our fiscal year,
we have already delivered 1.3 million pounds of food to our agencies, which is
150,000 more than at the same time last...the same time last year.
Over the past several years, we have implemented new programs throughout the
County of Maui that specifically target collecting more food. A produce recovery
program and a prepared food recovery program, for instance, have continued to
grow and now account for close to 20 percent of the total food that is collected by
the Food Bank. We are also working with the Maui Farm Bureau and their
farmers and are programmed to get more produce collected. We continue to be
one of the County's primary safety nets should a...should a disaster strike and our
participation with the emergency food assistance is an often overlooked part of
the Maui Food Bank's role in responsibility in time of disaster.
We could not have accomplished all that we have without the important and much
appreciated support given to us by the County of Maui. At the Maui Food Bank
we believe strongly that in this day and age and with the financial resources
available in this County, that there is no reason that anyone needs to go to bed
hungry. As a former board member at the Food Bank used to say, most of these
people don't want a handout, they want a hand up. The Maui Food Bank is there
to give that hand up. In this regard, please support a continued line item
appropriation for the Maui Food Bank for 2010. Thank you in advance for your
consideration and continued support. Mahalo.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you, Mark. Thank you, Garrett.
MR. WALKER: Thank you.
MR. HEW: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is Warren Gouveia here? Warren, followed by Wesley Chun.
MR. GOUVEIA: Good evening. Thank you for coming again. All of you know me and
my same spiel. I feel like I should be in a wax museum and just play a recording
for you every year. .. .(laughter). . . Anyway, the speaker before me talked
about nobody on Maui should be going to bed hungry, and I think there's going to
be one person tonight. I might miss dinner. . .(laughter). . . Just so I get home
for Golden Girls. I cannot miss out any lines from Blanche that's why. I'm in
love with Blanche. . .(laughter). . Ms. Estrogen.
Anyway, I did want to say one thing while I had the mic in front of me regarding
the Medevac. I got to use it twice. First, when I first had my stroke I was
Medevac'd to Oahu, and then months later, I was Medevac'd again to Queen's for
what they thought was a brain hemorrhage.
And my real concern right...tonight is on the MEO transportation. I use it for
Nutrition Program. We talked about the seniors that, you know, staying home and
being shut-ins and not getting to get out. Well, I'm finding out I am a senior and
I'm in the same boat. It gets me out of the house and I get to the senior programs.
I also use it to go downtown for shopping and pick up medications. I tell people
that I shop for groceries at the pharmacies because, you know, I seem to be eating
more pills than food, and soon not able to afford a lot of them. I worried about
how Medicare is going to settle when everything settles.
And also the I-Shuttle [sic] has been a wonderful service. That service is for
Upcountry. While you're here you can go places Upcountry between certain
hours from eight to four. I'm not sure exactly on the time, but I'm currently using
it to go to Makawao for physical therapy twice a week, and that's been a
wonderful service.
Because of the stroke I was told that I can no longer drive but I know I can drive.
I know it's not safe for me to be driving and because of that I've been totally
dependent on MEO transportation.
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Another concern that I have was that we were also...I was also using Kaunoa's
Assisted Transportation to go to doctor visits and we recently got told that
because we are able to ride the bus for MEO lunch program we can no longer use
Kaunoa Assisted Transportation. And not only myself, but there are a lot of
seniors that are in the same boat that I am that are not able to get to doctor visits
because of transportation.
I was listening and a few minutes ago I kept thinking to myself, does the Mayor
get to hear all these notes somehow? Is she going to get to listen to that? 'Cause,
you know, I'm just wondering if we're, you know, if we're just spinning wheels
here. Thank you for being so patient and nodding every now and then.
Appreciate that. . .(laughter). .
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MR. GOUVEIA: Okay. Just as much as you can, try to please, you know, we heard a lot
about the future citizens of Maui, but we need to remember the citizens of Maui
that made Maui that we are enjoying now are seniors and we definitely need to
take care of them. So please keep them in mind when you make your
suggestions. We appreciate it. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier'? We do have
a question, Warren.
MR. GOUVEIA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Warren?
MR. GOUVEIA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for being here and it's always a pleasure to
have you. Don't worry about the recording. You know, we deal with a lot of
paper. It's really nice to have people with us once in a while. But I did want to
ask you a question.
MR. GOUVEIA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You mentioned being...using the MEO transportation
service and you also mentioned Kaunoa.
MR. GOUVEIA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Have you ever used the MEO para...I mean not MEO,
I'm sorry, the Maui public transit service that...para-transit service?
MR. GOUVEIA: Yeah. I just found out about it. I just, just received my card so I can
also use that also, too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. But you've never used it?
MR. GOUVEIA: I haven't used it yet, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Have you used Ala Hou?
MR. GOUVEIA: Yes, I have.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's the program that you use?
MR. GOUVEIA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The MEO program that you use — Ala Hou?
MR. GOUVEIA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Are you.. .
MR. GOUVEIA: And they've also told us that if we have doctors appointments that are
not on our regular MEO days for Upcountry, that we should schedule our doctors
appointments on those days. But we're not quite brave enough to tell the doctors
when we want our appointments.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . .(chuckles). . The reason I'm asking you that is that
in the proposed Budget, Ala Hou, is not going to be with MEO any more — most
of it.
MR. GOUVEIA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And they're going to try to put it all on the para-transit
system. How do you feel about that?
MR. GOUVEIA: Well, I will definitely try to use it if I can because I will be without
transportation otherwise.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, and this fare, fare proposal that you're hearing
about, how does...how does that work for you?
MR. GOUVEIA: It's not going to be that bad for me, but I feel for some of the seniors
here who barely can do... make their lunch payments, and you know, social
security didn't go up anything this year -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. GOUVEIA: --and they were depending on just a little bit from that and nothing.
And I don't think anything's going to happen real soon either.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Thank you very much. It's going to be a very
tough budget year, but we'll do our best. Thank you.
MR. GOUVEIA: Thank you so much for coming.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Warren, -MR. GOUVEIA: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --before you go let me explain something. The Mayor
presented to the Council a Proposed Budget. She went around to the different
communities, took public testimony just like what we're doing tonight. The
budget that is being prepared by the County Council is the budget that the Mayor
will administer and that's the reason why we're here. Not only at Hannibal
Tavares, but we were at Kihei Community Center, as well we hear public
testimony at the Chambers, and we take all of those information and we create a
budget for this County. So we arc responsible to provide the Administration with
a budget and we need to get it done by the end of April.
MR. GOUVEIA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, by the end of May. So we will be...we are the final
decision makers on that. Okay. I have Member Medeiros, followed by Member
Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Warren, thank you for
being patient and then waiting to testify, and we appreciate your testimony. I
wanted to find out on the two occasions you had to use the Medevac, was that the
helicopter or the airplane?
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MR. GOUVEIA: The helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Helicopter?
MR. GOUVEIA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it was to go from Maui to Oahu?
MR. GOUVEIA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you very much for that information.
MR. GOUVEIA: And there was a third trip that I was charged for, for a Medevac from
Wahiawa to Queen's Hospital and when I checked the dates I was never on Oahu
on that date. . .(laughter). . . Don't you love it? I had to tell you that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So I hope...I hope you got that resolved.
MR. GOUVEIA: Oh, I did, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Warren.
MR. GOUVEIA: I got real nervous when I checked. They said, don't you remember
you were in an automobile accident? I said, no, I was at home on Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Warren, one quick question, and thank you
for being here this evening. Do you ever use the regular bus system? The
other...the regular buses?
MR. GOUVEIA: No, I don't, because I have to walk from the golf course up that hill to
catch the bus up here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So in other words the bus system doesn't really
help you in where you live -MR. GOUVEIA: Yeah. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --versus where their bus stops are.
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MR. GOUVEIA: I've walked it several times, but there are some days that you don't
want to be walking up the hill at 91 degrees.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, right. And then the last question I have, you
know when you mentioned about being Medevac'd -MR. GOUVEIA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to, to...you were Medevac'd from the hospital to
the hospital directly.
MR. GOUVEIA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not this go to the airport, then fly down, and then
take you.
MR. GOUVEIA: No. It was from the hospital to the airport on Oahu for the first trip
and then by ambulance to the hospital.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the second trip?
MR. GOUVEIA: The second trip I landed on Queen's.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Direct from this hospital to that hospital.
MR. GOUVEIA: And I kept complaining to the poor nurse that was on the Medevac
with me. I said, I can ride a regular airplane, why am I flying over here? So she
just kept trying to quiet me down. She said, and it was in December, she said, just
think, only two people in the world ever land on the roofs, you and Santa.
. . .(laughter). . . I said, I don't care.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There you go. Okay. Thank you, Warren. That's
a good way of answering that one. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Warren. Wesley Chun, followed by Maui
Fernandez.
MR. CHUN: Hi. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Council Members, friends, and people that,
hopefully, one day I'll be able to call friends. Thank you for the opportunity to
speak on behalf of the Maui Economic Development Board. Some of you know
me. My name is Wes Chun. I gave up a nice, cushy career as a faculty member
at university to come back here and struggle with a very small company. But I've
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come back to Hawaii bringing years of experience in plant pathology, molecular
biology, . . .(change tape, start 2B). . . bacterial physiology, Homeland Security.
So there's a lot of talent that stands before you here.
ABR some of you know is a company that's been around for quite a while. We're
a very small company. We have struggled quite a bit. We've been fighting
tenaciously several years to stay alive. And today's tough times it requires a great
deal of sacrifice, and which is what we have done, as well as many others have
done for their businesses and for their lives as well.
I'd like to thank all the friends that helped us survive, and most of all, the Maui
Economic Development Board because they have been a very good friend to us.
If you all remember... some of you remember last year I gave you all free samples
as a small token of, you know, thanks for the support you gave to the Maui
Economic Development Board. This year I'm not giving you folks anything and
there's a good reason. It's because I may soon need every single last drop of
product that we have to sell, and so sorry, no more freebies. And this is all due
because of the Maui Economic Development Board. You know, thanks to people
like Tom Liu, who's back there, and Kim. They've taken and represented our
product at BIO International shows and through that we've made contact with
distributors, and by cultivating this we have the potential to have a good deal of
sales this year.
And so what this does is that your investment in Maui Economic Development
Board has brought back additional dollars to Maui County. It's one of the very
few things that you folks have given money to that will pay back in the long term,
and so I think it's a very worthwhile investment. And so anyway, kudos to the
Maui Economic Development Board and good people like Tom and Kim.
And closing, I have three requests for the Council. Number one, is that you
continue support of small businesses on Maui through the Maui Economic
Development Board. I mean it's a very worthwhile investment, and it helps
people like us who don't have all the resources that is needed to go out and search
for the business opportunities, and they're there to help us out. Second, I'd like
you to consider innovative strategies to accelerate alternative industries on Maui.
You cannot survive on tourism and you must seek out new ideas. And that's an
easy thing for me to say, right? But where do you find these new ideas? This is
my third suggestion. Call on your local talent. People like us for these new ideas
and you may be pleasantly surprised at what we can come up with. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Mark...Maui Fernandez, followed by Marcie
Fernandez.
MR. FERNANDEZ: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Maui Fernandez. I'm here
on behalf of the Big Brothers Big Sisters and also the Boys and Girls Club. I got
two children that have been part of the Big Brothers Big Sisters for four years
now and it's a mentoring program that's done great wonders for my children. The
improvements that I've seen in them are very, very dramatic. The
mentoring...they spend one-on-one time with older, older children — their big
brother or their big sister. I have a son and a daughter. And the, the coping skills
and the responsibility and the self-esteem and the structure that they get is just so
valuable that it's a noticeable difference every year. And last year was my son's
last year. This year is my daughter's last year. But I believe that the, the dramatic
differences that I've seen, it's a program that should be continued and it's just
something that is really valuable for their, their growth.
And as far as the Girls and Boys Club, it's, it's a really huge thing to have
us...have our children in a place that's, first of all, affordable 'cause they're
extremely cheap. We've had them in other programs that were so expensive that
we couldn't afford, and also it didn't have the activities. It didn't have the, the
games or it didn't have the, the time alone with the...they have a Power Hour that
they do their homework, and it didn't even have none of these activities and stuff
that really helped them. It was kind of like a continuing of the other program. So
the two programs really went hand-in-hand for our children and it was a real
blessing.
And listening to all the testimonies here tonight, I haven't heard anybody talk
anything about any of our County-funded drug programs. And you know, I'm
a...I'm a graduate of Aloha House and this year is my 10 th year Jean. So I'm a
success from the program and I really believe that that is . . .(applause). . . that is
something that, you know, I've been watching. I still do service at some of the
facilities here on Maui. I still do service and some of the activities and I believe
that it's just something that we really need to...the success rate is not high, but
you know, for me, it's like the beach full of fish, you know, when you throw one
back, it made a difference to him, you know, and that's the same way I feel. It
made a difference to me and a lot of my friends and family are the same. So right
now I noticed that some cuts have been made to like Aloha House and some other
fundings that they really rely on. And the big thing that I notice is that you know
the addicts don't stop coming, but the funding does. You know, the money to
help these people, it just...it's just something that's very hard to justify, but I just
want to make sure that I let you all know that I believe in it and I'm one of those
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success people that I just really grateful for it. So thank you all very much for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? And
we'll follow up on that particular issue that you had regarding drug program. I
know the County was really strong on that. Maybe my EA will find out before
this meeting is over in regards to monies set...being set aside for such a program.
MR. FERNANDEZ: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Marcie Fernandez, followed by Karen Siguera
[sic].

MS. FERNANDEZ: Good evening. My name is Marcie Fernandez and I'm here on
behalf of Big, I'm sorry, Boys and Girls Club of Maui. You just heard from my
husband. So we have two children in the Boys and Girls Club and for us working
parents who cannot be home when the kids come home from school, it's, it's such
a wonderful place and a positive place to have our kids go. And it's good for me
to know when I'm at work to know that they're somewhere safe, their homework
is getting done, if they're hungry, they're getting fed, and they have that
one-on-one connection with the leaders. They have sports and activities to do.
And I just feel that it's such an important program and I'm requesting continued
support for it.
Also, our children are in Big Brothers, Big Sisters, which has been a wonderful
program and when they're older, I'm sure both of them will want to be the Bigs to
give back to the Littles. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again. Karen Siguera [sic], followed by Erik Ekenberg.
MS. FIGUEIRA: Hello, I'm Karen Figueira and I first have to say thank you and it also
saddens me because I have worked for Head Start. I was also on the board for the
Youth Center Upcountry before it became Boys and Girls Club and now I am
speaking on behalf of Big Brothers and Big Sisters and that we have to do this
every year in front of you. And I appreciate your time but it's really a shame that
we all have to vie for money.
So I have a 17 year old senior in high school and a 21 year old senior in college,
both graduating in May. They are both big brothers for little brothers at Big
Brothers and Big Sisters. And I'm here to tell you that not only is it a good thing
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for our little children, it is a good thing for young adults because I see what it's
done for my children.
I also work at Makawao School and I see what it has done to our youth, and we
have Big Brothers on Monday, and Tuesday through Friday the kids ask when Big
Brothers is going to be again. It's a wonderful program for all of our children and
each and every one of them need a little bit of extra attention, especially in this
day and age. And I just want to say thank you for your time. Please, I don't
know how you do it because I would not want to be in your shoes right now.
There is not enough money to go around. I don't know how you decide where it
goes because every one of these programs that have been mentioned tonight are
valuable. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? If not, thank
you again. For those of you this evening I'd just like to point out that for
Substance Abuse Program we do have $657,000 allocated for that particular
program so we do have funding. Erik Ekenberg, followed by Audrey
Tamashiro-Kamii.
MR. EKENBERG: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Erik Ekenberg. I
have...I'm here on behalf of Maui Boys and Girls Club Upcountry. I have two
daughters. One goes to Kula School; one goes to Makawao School. One nine;
one thirteen. I work two jobs and I'm trying to start my own business so what the
Boys and Girls Club does for me is gives a safe place for my children to go after
school. The MEO bus, my daughter rides from Kula School down to Makawao
School. Without that, I wouldn't be able...she wouldn't be able to attend. She'd
have to ride the bus home and be home alone, you know, until I get off work. I
work from 7:30 in the morning 'till probably 6:00 in the evening. So by the time I
get home, as far as doing school work and stuff like that, you know, the Boys and
Girls Club covers all of that for me.
Without these programs, you know, somebody like me can't give my children a
chance. You know, when I was a kid, I grew up in Makawao, and by the time I
was 13, I was committing crime and doing drugs. I spent most of my life doing
that. I'm also a recovering drug addict; a graduate of Maui Drug Court. I spent a
few years in prison. MEO helped me get out of prison, helped me get back on my
feet. They gave me, you know, they gave me educational training. They helped
me with tools, they helped me with clothes. I think that integration program has
since been folded up and put away a long time ago. But all of these programs that
are on the table are very important to everybody, you know. At least for me, I'm
trying to survive and stay clean and give my family a chance that I didn't have.
Without the programs, it won't happen. You know, when, when I was a kid,
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Makawao, there was no Boys and Girls Club and I got into mischief and I ended
up paying the ultimate price for it.
And we need these programs. We need to take care of our elders. We need to
guide our children and do the best we can. So thanks for listening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Audrey Tamashiro-Kamii, followed by Sandy Ryan.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Good evening. My name is Audrey Tamashiro-Kamii. 1
am the Program Assistant for East Maui Watershed Partnership. The gentlemen
behind me they are not my bodyguards. . . .(laughter). . . They are the field staff
for EMWP and they are basically the core of our organization, and I would like to
talk to you about them a little bit this evening. These are the men that go into the
fields, the mountains, the rain shed...water...rain forest, and the bogs and spend
three to five days out there building ungulate-free fence. They remove invasive
species, they work in knee-deep mud, they work at elevations starting at 3,000
feet, and the weather is adverse. It's, you know, super wet, super rainy, super
cold, super windy, and super everything all at once sometimes. But they do this
because they believe in the work that we do. They are there to protect our
watershed so that when you turn on that faucet in the morning, you have clean,
running water. The work is very dangerous and they spend a lot of time away
from home. You know, they have missed birthday parties and May Day
Programs because of it, but they do this...they sacrifice, you know, their lives to
do the protection of our native eco-systems. So this is who we are — EMWP in a
nutshell — and we really thank Maui County.
We are honored that you and the community have given us the opportunity to be
stewards of East Maui. Maui County has always been a staunch supporter of
conservation efforts here and the forerunner for conservation in the state and
through your support you enabled us to protect a 7,000 acre area in the Koolau
Rainforest Reserve. We also have a 3,500 acre area that we are working on in
upper Hana forest, which is to protect a native hog system that is unique to Maui.
So on behalf of our organization, and I know I can speak for all of the
conservation agencies here in Maui Nui, that we really truly appreciate the
support that Maui County has given us. We do humbly ask for your continued
support and we understand that this...these are very challenging times, but we ask
for your support so that we can continue to do the important work that we do and
that is to protect our watershed, the natural habitat for our native species, and to
protect our water resources that support our way of life. So thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member
Medeiros, followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Tamashiro, -MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMI• Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --is somebody going to be in Hana tomorrow
evening to testify on behalf of your organization?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: I'm sorry. Unfortunately, we won't be able to be in Hana
tomorrow evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So just let me ask you this then.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: How many teams of workers or crews do you have
in the East Maui Watershed area?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: We have six field staff and that is our crew.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Are some of them based in Hana?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: We're all...you mean the field staff themselves?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yes. The ones that do the work.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: They're all here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So they go in?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then they come back out?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMI• Yes, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On a daily basis or whenever you schedule them?
MS. TAMASHERO-KAMI• Well, especially for the Hana project, what we do is they go
into Hana and they stay for five days.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: They go in Monday and they come out Friday. That is the
most efficient use of our, our resources, our helicopter time and everything.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Well, thank you so much to you folks,
you know, for protecting our watershed areas. Appreciate it. Mahalo.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And my question to you is, how much
is the money that we give you, you leverage every year with other agencies as
well as Federal and private foundations, -MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is that correct?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes. That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What is the State...what are their...what are they
telling you they're going to cut you guys back to?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: They are going to be cutting us back to...they used to be
able to provide a lot more and now we are going to be down to I would say about
maybe 14 percent of our operating budget is what they will be able to offer us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And what was the percentage prior to that?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Very close to 60.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very close?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what is your budget this upcoming year then?
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MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: This upcoming year, the budget has changed just a little bit
because it, it was a little larger to kick start this Hana project that we had. Our
operating budget will probably be about 650.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 650,000?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And majority of that money is from Fed?
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: We were lucky to receive some stimulus package funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: So we have a larger percentage of Federal funds coming in.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: The County has been very, very generous, and you
will... you have been providing for us about very close to 30 percent of our budget
which we truly appreciate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, we appreciate what you folks do. And again,
you made the good point. Those of you who get water everyday, when you open
your...that's...this is where it starts. It starts with them and it gets down to us.
Thank you very much.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I have a question for you.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand that there's a second round on the stimulus money
— ARRA.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Would you know if there's additional monies? Or maybe go
follow-up on that second round as far as stimulus money for your program.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: We'll do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sandy Ryan, followed by Baron Okimoto.
MS. RYAN: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Sandy Ryan and I'm a 15-year
resident of Makawao — neighbors with a couple of you. As a Program Director
with Maui Economic Development Board, I've been encouraged to seek
leadership positions in organizations in our community, and for the last three
years I've volunteered as a Board Member for Hui Malama Learning Center. I
currently serve as their president. I came to Hui Malama as a parent. My son at
the time was in the 8 th grade and although he's been a Hawaiian immersion
student since preschool, his special education needs weren't being met at the time.
He had a great 8 th grade year and is back in Kaiapuni now at Kekaulike, but he
knows that the door is always open to him at Hui Malama.
You'll be hearing about other aspects and you have tonight of Hui Malama from
our teachers and our students, parents, and even other board members. Tonight
I'm here to talk about doing more with less. In fact, I'm really proud to be
associated with this organization and the entrepreneurial way with which Pua
Enos and her management team run the organization. Like other nonprofits, Hui
Malama has faced significant reductions to our overall budget and yet we are
providing more hours of instruction than ever before. To expand our mission and
vision and develop programs using innovative teaching methods, Hui Malama has
undertaken a really intensive strategic planning effort in the last year and a half.
This processes allowed us to refocus our effort and redefine our programs to
address critical education needs that are being unmet by traditional education
models and schools. Using research-based methods to develop partnerships is a
key strategy for Hui Malama and doing more with less.
We are fortunate to count as partners the Maui Economic Development Board,
Maui Economic Opportunity, Teens on Call, MCC's Sustainable Living Institute
of Maui, the UH Cooperative Extension, Hawaiian Canoe Club, the Salvation
Army, and Queen Liliuokalani Children Center. We've been able to leverage
these partner resources to improve the quality of our instruction, programming,
and curriculum and also to provide teacher professional development.
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Partnerships have also provided our students with access to career opportunities
and exposure to academic and workforce development programs, such as
MEDB's Tech Careers Day. They've also brought about resources for
excursions. We've recently were able to purchase a van for excursions that are
tied to sustainability, place-based [sic], and serving learning...service learning
projects.
So in closing, I'd like to thank each of you for your continued investment in Hui
Malama Learning Center. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MS. RYAN: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Baron Okimoto, followed by Roseria Okimoto.
MR. OKIMOTO: Hello, Members. In front of you stands a person that was saved by the
medical helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Move closer to the mic, please.
MR. OKIMOTO: In front of you stands...that good? We're good now? .. .(adjusting
mic).. .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's good.
MR. OKIMOTO: Okay. Okay, in front of you stands a person that was saved by the
medical helicopter. I was...I got into a really bad car accident in Molokai.
Without the medical helicopter I wouldn't be standing here in front of you. All I
can ask is keep the funding going for the helicopter. It saves lives. It really does.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you
very much for being here. Roseria Okimoto, -MS. OKIMOTO: Aloha. . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Walle Landenberg [sic].
MS. OKIMOTO: Aloha, Maui County. My name is Roseria Okimoto and I am Baron
Okimoto, Junior's mom. And please don't cut the funds for our helicopter. That
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is really, really, really crucial for the Island of Molokai because if we didn't have
the helicopter, my son would be dead. I mean like he was really bleeding out —
everything — and if they neva just come pick him up and fly him out, he would
have died. Now this is only one — imagine the rest of the Island of Molokai? You
know, things like this can happen and it will happen, and it's so sad if you take
away our helicopter 'cause it's like you taking away the helicopter, they die. If
you guys keep giving us our helicopter, they have a chance to survive. My son
was lucky 'cause if wasn't for the helicopter, my son wouldn't be alive today.
Seriously, he would not be alive today. So, please, don't take away our helicopter
funds for Molokai because we really do need it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Walle Landenberger, followed by Heather Morgan.
MS. LANDENBERGER: I need my glasses. My name is Walle Landenberger. I live in
Makawao. On Tuesday, at the Council Budget meeting, I was made aware that
the Department of Transportation is proposing to end all bus passes, and
everybody would have to pay $1 per boarding. Like you go to the mall, you get
off; you get on another bus, you pay another $1; you go to Longs, you pay another
$1, another $1, another $1. As a rider for over three years because I wanted to
support the bus, I find that this is not a step forward, but a huge step backwards.
Not making bus passes available may make some money available on the short
term, but in the long run the bus system is going to be damaged.
For me, I first used the bus so I could support the bus. I believe in public
transportation. I even got rid of my car because I knew if I kept it, I wouldn't ride
the bus. I've purchased a pass from when I first started to ride and I encouraged
others to, to purchase passes all the time. It takes a lot of patience and dedication
to be a regular user of public transportation.
I work for the County. You guys...most of you know that. I've not had a pay
increase for about three years. I'm facing a minimum of 12 days unpaid
work...unpaid work days this next fiscal year. I've increased rental costs. I've
increased electricity costs. I have increased taxes coming to me via the State. I'm
facing increased health insurance costs. Possibly increased tax...trash collection.
I've increased food costs and I've increased bottle deposit costs. And every time
I turn around somebody is charging me more money for less service and
compared to others, I' m doing good.
I purchase the senior pass for myself each month and I purchase a regular pass for
each month for my nephew. Costs me $65 a month — that's $780 a year at the
current rate. If the passes are tossed away to the wayside and I use the bus at bare
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minimum just to go back and forth to work, nowhere else, it's going to cost me
$80 a month — just me. If I go shopping, then it's going to cost... it could cost me
anywhere from $8 to $10 one trip, just me, to go up and down and go to a couple
of places in town. At this rate, I might as well give up the public transit and get
me a car again because if I have to pay, well, I calculated, I'd have to pay over
$1,200 a year, I might as well be putting it toward gasoline and convenience and
not standing in the rain waiting for a late bus. I also wouldn't have to deal with
my family giving me a hard time about being a bus rider. . . .(laughter).
. .

Now, there are families that don't have any choice at all and those are the ones
that live at shelters who are tying to take their kids places. How are they going to
get around? How are they going to get to work? How are they going to get to the
doctor? They don't have enough money to afford a place to live. How are they
going to pay a $1 every time they get on a bus, not just for themselves, but for any
child they can't hold? I encourage you guys to ride the bus. I know Sol rides it.
Hear the conversations. See who...see where people are going. See how they use
the bus. See who is using the bus.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MS. LANDENBERGER: I can finish. Public transportation is not a money making
venture. It never has been and it never will be. All public transportation is
subsidized by the government everywhere. During the past...last year's budget
discussion, the Transportation Director said that the point of having passes and
getting people to ride the bus more is to, "Get cars off the road and to change
people's thinking, change their mindset about mass transit, that's what we're
really trying to do here". That's what he said. So you may need to adjust the cost
of passes, but don't get...discard them. Put a proviso in — require that they make
them easier to purchase. People try to get them from the bus drivers and lots of
times the bus drivers don't have passes to sell. Set something up for low income
families with no way to get around. Also, seniors who can't drive any more.
Create weekly passes for tourist because they'll buy a short term pass, but they
won't buy a monthly pass. The County will make money and they'll go back and
tell people about it. Expand the passes. Don't let the Administration back away
from them.
Public transportation has to be guided by those with the vision, not by those who
say we can't, and I have faith in the Council to find a way because I've seen you
do it before.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Walle. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thanks, Walle, for coming tonight. I think this whole
bus thing is really, really important. It's probably a big part of the hard decisions
we're going to have to make but a very important one. How do you buy your
pass?
MS. LANDENBERGER: I'm lucky. I work right next door to the Department of
Transportation. They sell them there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you need to.. .
MS. LANDENBERGER: But nobody knows that.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: So you...where do you get them? Where do normal
people get 'em that don't work in the County building?
MS. LANDENBERGER: Most people have to go to the drivers and ask them. And lots
of times they don't have the correct change. Lots of times the drivers don't
have 'ern. They say, well, go buy at the next bus you get on or they gotta wait
`till the next day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you wait while the driver accepts money and then
issues a pass?
MS. LANDENBERGER: They have to write it out because they give 'ern like a receipt
thing. So. . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And what happens if you get on the bus and you pay
cash? How does that work? They have a fare box? I haven't ridden the bus. I'm
sorry.
MS. LANDENBERGER: Well, that's why you guys gotta ride it, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MS. LANDENBERGER: But, yeah, they have a box and lots of times people have a $1,
sometimes they don't have the right change, sometimes they. . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So is it like a regular fare box? You know, I use the bus
on Oahu.
MS. LANDENBERGER: You just drop it in --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You just throw it in and that's it.
MS. LANDENBERGER: --and that's it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So there is a...the problem with the passes is
that's not the best place to be selling them is on the bus.
MS. LANDENBERGER: No, and part of...one of the things, too, just since you asked
me, is that there's...people get confused about the commuter bus versus the island
routes versus the circular versus the para-transit. They don't know what they are.
The DOT doesn't advertise, doesn't explain things. They need...we
have...County has an Economic Development group. Why not have the DOT
work with Economic Development and come up with some kind of an ad
campaign and let people know what's going on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank, thank you so much, you know, for...when you're
a rider, you have this firsthand experience and we need to look at all this and
try... if this is going to work, we have to find a way to make it convenient for
people to pay.
MS. LANDENBERGER: You know, people don't mind paying, -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MS. LANDENBERGER: --but they want it to be fair, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Thank you very much.
MS. LANDENEERGER: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA Okay. Thank you. The next testifier is Heather Morgan,
followed by Rita Barreras.
-

MS. MORGAN: . . .(change tape, start 3A). . . Good evening, County Council. Thank
you so much. I'm very grateful to have the opportunity to talk. My name is
Heather Morgan. I'm a Kula, Keokea resident and I'm also a member of the
board of the Kula Community Association. I'm so grateful to be speaking next
after Walle because I also want to talk about the Maui Bus. I am a great fan of
public transportation. I absolutely love the bus. I love taking it. Our whole
family takes it. I think it's a fabulous addition to the community and I think it's
doing a wonderful job. I know there's always kinks to work out in the beginning
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of a service and it's relatively new, but I just think it's absolutely fabulous. And
it's, it's really a common sight to most of us now. We see buses all over the road.
There's lots of people on the bus and sometimes they're full, especially this
Upcountry route. I've noticed it's getting fuller and fuller. I love the bicycle
racks on the front. It's great for people so they can bicycle to the bus. Also, I
think that the service is, is, is fabulous right now the way it's been extended with
the free loops in Kahului and Wailuku.
And what I'd like to talk to you tonight about is the possibility of proposing a
route to Kula and what we're wanting to propose is a route from the Pukalani
Shopping Center here up to the hospital. And I'd like to go over the reasons
why...first of all, we've come up with a proposal and Dick Mayer will speak on
that. He's got a whole route planned that we'd like to show you. We've taken the
time to actually plan out bus stops and shelters, possible parking spaces, and a
route that would be perfectly coordinated with the bus here so that it would leave
a few minutes after and then come a few minutes before. So it would perfectly
work in sync.
That's another thing I love about the bus is I can get on here in Makawao and be
in Kaanapali and literally have less than five minutes at every stop. It's been so
well coordinated. And the Kaahumanu Center is a new place now. It's like a
little beehive there with the bus terminal. So many people take it, I think it's, it's,
it's, it's something that everyone can use.
So I want to go over some of the reasons why we think this bus would be a good
bus route for Maui. First of all for commuters, it would allow Kula residents to
commute and, and we know a lot of us that commute — do a lot of driving. I put
about 2,500 miles on my car every month. I commute to Wailea to a hotel and I
would love to take the bus. I'd love to be able to read. Even if it took me twice
as long, I would love to do that. So in terms of the environment it would be a
great reduction in carbon emissions to have Kula residents be able to take a bus
who are currently driving. It would reduce the congestion immensely on the
Haleakala Highway and the Lower Kula Highway. And for people who don't
have cars, it would give them an opportunity to go and expand their horizons, go
down to Kahului or Wailea, Kaanapali, to the resort areas and get a job. They
could contribute to our community. It would give them dignity, especially for
those people that cannot even afford to have a car.
Also, for teenagers, they could have part-time jobs after school and on weekends.
This would give them a very safe, healthy alternative to get them out to spend
time taking the bus. We know that the children will be in good hands. It's a great
way for them to expand their horizons. Also, for hospital workers at the Kula
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Hospital, they could commute up to the hospital. Also, speaking of teenagers,
along with helping them have greater access to part-time jobs they could stay after
school if they miss the school bus, they could participate in sports activities, have
greater access to movie theaters, beaches, family. For the elderly, this would be a
fabulous, fabulous addition. This would be a very safe, economical way to travel.
It could get them seeing their families more. They'd have access to doctors
offices, to Longs Drugs, to the hospital, to the post office, to the Pukalani Center
here.
And just lastly, for businesses, this would likely help expand their businesses for
the... for the Kula community and other people, especially for the local
family-owned businesses. This would give 'em a chance to really get more of the
Kula businesses and then also for the bigger stores such as Longs and, and the
post office, the hospital. It would give greater access for everyone.
So I realize you've got a lot to consider in terms of your budget, but I would love
to plant the seed that we really think this would be a wonderful way to expand
Upcountry and give all the Upcountry residents and the whole County of Maui
greater access to Kula. Okay. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Rita Barreras, followed by David Murata.
MS. BARRERAS: Aloha. It's nice to be here and I want to say a big mahalo to each of
you for all that you've done for seniors, people with disabilities, and caregivers in
this community. I'm the Director of the Aging with Aloha Coalition. My name is
Rita Barreras and I wanted to share that the funding that you have...the County
has provided us, has helped us to stay ahead of the curve to find solutions to
issues in long-term care and helping people age well especially on Maui. We are
one of the fastest growing aging communities in the nation and we refer to it that
the tsunami of aging has been coming here for a long time, and the mainland folks
are starting to use tsunami of aging. We've been using it for quite a while. As
something to say, we have to do emergency preparedness for Maui County and
that's what we have been focusing on. So some of the things you've been
funding.
We heard from constituents many years ago that one of the things that they
needed was where to go to get help and so we responded and what we did was we
came up a website...up with a website for people who do use online services to
access a directory of services. We have the most comprehensive directory in the
State at this point and we also put together a print directory so that for seniors
who don't use computers, we've been disseminating that directory around the
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islands, you know, for the last couple of years now. We had...we're going to
update it, the 2010 version, and then we'll disseminate that as well. So that's one
of the areas.
The other one was increasing awareness about aging and long-term care in the
islands. We have been sustaining our six regional planning groups of volunteers
primarily of seniors and they would like to expand it to be inter-generational to
help come up with solutions and a community education plan to help people learn
how to age well. Because what we learned over the...those five and a half years
that we received Robert Wood Johnson Foundation money is that we looked at
the cost of long-term care and in 2003 the highest cost that we found was
$108,000 per year at Hale Makua and Kula Hospital. So we said, well, we need
to put in, you know, put in place a prevention program so that's what we're doing
when we say we're helping people age well so they can avoid those costs.
One of the more creative things I think we've done is in the high schools. We are
educating today's generation and our future generation. At the high school level
we implemented a long-term care curriculum as part of the health and medical
career pathway program. The two teachers I met with recently said keep it in
place, it's working well, they wouldn't adjust it that much. But what we do have
is a new idea. Waianae High School has a certified nurse aide program in the
high school as part of their pathway program and these teachers are interested in
helping...having us help them perhaps pilot test this in the high schools here in
Maui County. So that's one of the areas. We are calling it growing our own
workforce. So that we would find students in high school who don't want to
become...they don't want to go on to college necessarily, they want to become
certified nurse aides and they want to live on Maui and they want to stay and, and
continue to live on Maui. So that would be growing our own workforce.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.

MS. BARRERAS: Let me conclude then. The last part I'll just say, the long-term care
curriculum at the college level is in its third and last year. We'll do an evaluation
in April and share those results. It's also the last year that Maui Community
College will participate in that project and also be our fiscal agent. So we
appreciate the funding that you do provide us. We wouldn't...request that you
look at that line to adjust, you know, the, the fiscal agent. The infrastructure that
you've been supporting us on, you know, we continue to try and develop a
training and advocacy program for our seniors and inter-generational people and
volunteers in the community. We're also developing a training and technical
assistance program. That one, other communities are interested in our model of
planning, implementation, and evaluation. We would look at this as a way to earn
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income and help leverage the resources that you provide us. So that would need
to be developed and we could report on them. So with that, thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Rita. Member Molina, question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Rita. Thank you for your testimony.
You mentioned the schools — these are private schools or public schools you have
your programs?
MS. BARRERAS: Public schools. It would be Lahainaluna High School and Maui High
is where we have... and also Kamehameha School, but primarily Maui High and
Lahainaluna is where we have been working.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. And aside from the County assistance
do you get any support from the State in terms of funding?
MS. BARRERAS: No, not at this time, but we continue to look at ways to leverage
resources just like that training and technical assistance program. We see it as a
model that frankly mainland communities, people on Oahu, and Lanai and
Molokai have said we need your help. Please help us design this similar kind of
model for our communities.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, thank you
very much, Rita.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: David Murata, followed by Doreen Gomes.
MR. MURATA: My name is David Murata from Kula representing Micronesians in our
community through the Micronesian Christian Ministry. I'm here to speak to
support...in support of the Aloha Shares Program and to thank the Mayor for her
support of this program aimed at recycling goods to assist those in need and to
reduce usable goods that may be disposed in our landfill facility.
I've been involved with assisting students and new settlers who have come to
Maui from the Micronesian Islands of the Marshall Islands, Kosrae, Pohnpei,
Chuuk, and Yap for nearly 40 years since 1971. These students and settlers came
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without any belongings and with very little money, if any. Some churches and
community agencies have provided some help but it has been the Aloha Shares
Program that provided the most no-cost resources for housing needs in particular
— from beds, appliances, furniture, as well as school needs such as computers. I
have not kept track of the number... amount of help, as well as, but, but have
almost weekly turned to Aloha Shares for years to assist hundreds of families, but
who have settled their needs from Aloha Shares. This community resource has
reduced these families from full dependence on government and other agency
help required for settlement.
I ask the support of our Administration and our Council to fully support the
program that has and can continue to provide valuable assistance to those in need
and to make our community "no ka oi" for all of those who come to settle and
make Maui their home. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you, David. Doreen Gomes, followed by Pam Farnsworth.
MS. GOMES: I was ready to leave. . .(chuckles). . Thank you, Joe. Aloha, Council
Members and Staff. My name is Doreen Gomes. On behalf of the Kula
Community Association, thank you for listening to our community. In reference
to the Polipoli Road drainage improvements to replace the culvert and repair road
damages caused in 2007, it is our hope that you will continue to support this
project. We would especially like to recognize Councilmember Baisa for her
compassion for all of Maui County, most importantly Upcountry.
I'd like to switch hats for a second. As a board member of the Boys and Girls
Club of Maui, I would like to echo the concerns of the children, the staff, and
parents of this very deserving organization. Thank you. Good night.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Pua. Member Baisa. Pua.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No, no question for Pua, Chair, -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --but I did want to make an announcement. The Baisa
Team is getting a little late and we have kids that gotta get to school tomorrow.
So we have a few more minutes. If you need something, would you please help
yourself and then they'll be packing up the refreshments. So if you'd like a refill,
please go get something now. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Pam Farnsworth.
MS. FARNSWORTH: E aloha e, Council Members. My name is Pam Farnsworth. I'm
a Maui girl who went to college on the mainland majoring in electrical
engineering. During my college summers I used to come back home and work for
ECM, a local engineering firm. I lived and worked on the West Coast for almost
20 years before returning to Maui in 2005. My husband is also an electrical
engineer and my family and I were able to come back due in large part to a job
fair sponsored by the Maui Economic Development Board, which was aimed at
recruiting locals who wished to return to Maui. The job fair was timed
appropriately during the holidays when many of us returned to visit families and
celebrate the season.
My husband was able to acquire a job at the Tech Park in Kihei through contacts
made at the job fair. I'm very happy to be back on Maui and working on issues
such as renewable energy and energy efficiency, again at ECM. My husband is
enjoying the challenges of his position and my children enjoy their extracurricular activities and some freedoms that I would never allow them in a city on
the mainland. Much of the opportunities that my husband and I encounter in our
working life are due in large part to the work of the Maui Economic Development
Board or MEDB as they are commonly called.
I've participated in working groups to develop an energy action plan for Maui
County, comprehensive, economic development strategy sessions, and energy
modeling sessions hosted by MEDB. I'm always impressed by the diverse group
of participants present, the exchange of ideas, and viewpoints always facilitated
by an MEDB moderator and based on fieldwork and data compiled by MEDB
prior to the sessions.
I feel that the meetings are a vital part of well-planned growth for the economy
and industries of Maui County. I was particularly intrigued by the energy
modeling sessions. When implemented, the modeling program will be a tool that
allows MEDB to enter energy scenarios and simulate their social, economic, and
environmental impacts. This is in relation to renewable energy. Of course,
garbage in to computer programs equals garbage out. So the data on which the
modeling is based must also be well-developed and selected. Such modeling may
help us avoid unintended consequences such as those which resulted from the
import of taape and roi. I believe that there is similar...there's a similar analysis
being developed for our water situation. I feel that programs such as this are vital
to the future of Maui County and should be funded.
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I know that MEDB also does tremendous outreach in education preparing our
students for local jobs. As someone who lived in a sleepy little city that
underwent tremendous development and growth, I also applaud and appreciate
MEDB' s efforts on behalf of Focus Maui Nui which gives each of us a say in our
vision for our future here on Maui. Please continue to support and fund an agency
that is the forefront of our economic development and works to provide us
cushion in challenging times such as today. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Kaholowa'a Smith.
MR. SMITH: My name is Kaholowa'a Smith, the crew leader for the East Maui
Watershed Partnership. Audrey just covered the whole big basis thing of my
whole speech and I wanted to cover a little bit of that too, but she took care of it.
We started early this morning and it's kind of a last minute notice of coming
inside to talk. We just came out of the field. We just got off the helicopter. So,
you know, just...my shoes are all wet and kind of ready to go home. We just
really want to appreciate and thank you guys for helping us out, and you know,
just continue efforts on, on the budgets. And maybe I got a little bit...something
to say but I'd also like to thank Kuhea Paracuelles also inside the Mayor's Office.
She pushed so hard trying to get us some money so we can continue our, our
nature efforts. It really helps us. So...and I'll just keep this short, but we really
wanted to thank you guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Smith, -MR. SMITH: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --mahalo for your testimony. In the work you folks
do, do you also do invasive species management and removal?
MR. SMITH: Yes. Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you collaborate with the Maui Invasive Species
Committee?
MR. SMITH: They are all agencies...like Nature Conservancy is also here. They'll be
talking hopefully and we kind of have this one big protocol on how we remove
non-natives.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's a partnership between different agencies that
protect and manage our watershed areas?
MR. SMITH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo for your testimony.
MR. SMITH: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Smith, when you dug into your pocket, -MR. SMITH: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I thought you was gonna hand one check . .(laughter). . . to,
to meet our budget deficit. Thank you.
MR. SMITH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Riki Maeda, followed by Zachary Jarman.
MR. MAEDA: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for giving me this
opportunity to speak in front of you. I just wanted to say a few words in support
of MEDB. A number of people have come up and described some of the work
they do. I'm a resident of Pukalani and I work for an aerospace company down in
the Tech Park. We've been able to expand over the past couple of years, five
employees in 2007, and we're up to 25 at this point, and so it shows that a well
run company can thrive on Maui. But it's important to note that we've benefitted
tremendously from the support of MEDB and we see other companies in the Tech
Park that rely on MEDB. It's an organization that is very efficient. I think they
do a tremendous amount of good work with very little funding and yet the results
are remarkable, and it...and it really translates into jobs.
And that's what motivates me to be up here is that I've seen firsthand that this is
an organization that helps Maui and I can't say enough about the importance of
job creation. And these are well paying jobs and the organization, MEDB, allows
people to come back to Maui and the organization also develops from the, the
youth and they, they provide the grants and the, the opportunities at all levels to,
to become a part of the workforce. And as part of a high tech organization, we
struggle to hire locally and MEDB is one of the few organizations that really does
their share of developing a workforce. So please continue to support this
organization and it's a great return so thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank
you very much. Zachary Jarman, and Members, Zachary was named Youth of the
Year for the Boys and Girls Club. . .(applause). . .
MR. JARMAN: Good evening. I'm testifying on behalf of the Boys and Girls Club
Upcountry. My name is Zachary Jarman. I'm 17 years old and I've been a
member of the Upcountry, Upcountry Boys and Girls Club for eight years. I'm a
junior at King Kekaulike High School. I recently just had been participating in
the Youth of the Year Program and I just won the State's, which I'm the first
Maui kid to ever win, and I will represent Hawaii in the regional competition in
Southern California.
The Boys and Girls Club is...being a veteran in...of the Boys and Girls Club, it
has...I may be...it's always been a very supportive environment. Like some of
the programs they were talking about, Power Hour, the things like that. They
really...you become...it's a close-knit family at the Boys and Girls Club, and it's
just...it is my...it's turned into my second home.
I don't have much to say. I'd just like to thank all of you guys for your time and
thank you, County Council.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good job. Members, questions for the testifier? If
not, good luck, Jarman. Next testifier is Nalu Andrade, followed by Alda
St. James.
MR. ANDRADE: Hello, County Council Members. I would just like to thank you guys
for all the years before this as I was with The Nature Conservancy before I
became with East Maui Watershed Partnership so you guys have done a lot for me
in the past throughout maybe eight years since I was in high school. And without
you guys we couldn't do any of the work we do in the mountain without you guys
help so I'd just like to thank you guys. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Alda St. James, followed by Matt Daniells.
MS. ST. JAMES: Good evening, Council Members. I'm Alda St. James. I'm the
Director of Keiki Kokua. Thank you so much for your past support. In these
difficult economic times I especially thank you for this year's line item. Please
know that Keiki Kokua leverages every penny we receive to improve our services
in the community. We are social entrepreneurs. To us this means fulfilling our
mission and stepping out into the community to create in a small way real social
change. In the past year, Keiki Kokua has successfully held two social events for
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foster families in Maui County; responded to over 400 calls for assistance on the
Kokua Line. We've conducted our annual leverage drive receiving about 300
pieces of luggage, tote bags, and backpacks. We've responded to respite care
needs for our target population of caregivers. We've updated and expanded our
free services listing on our website and produced quality newsletters.
Beyond that, Keiki Kokua has opened a thrift store. This thrift store gives
caregivers in Maui County a 30 percent discount and free luggage and backpacks
for their children and youth in need or in transition. We have created new jobs in
our community and we will continue to create more in the future. We take
community service very seriously. As you heard from Acacia earlier, we treat our
community service participants like family.
We are the worksite for several programs — the Second Circuit Court, CSSP
Program, the Department of Public Safety, Welfare to Work Programs, and a
Foster Youth Summer Employment Program. The Keiki Kokua thrift store has
been blessed with many wonderful donations. Some of you here donate very
wonderful things to us. We get so many donations in fact that we're able to give
to other nonprofits — Becca's Closet, gowns and formal wear; Malama Recovery
Center, baby clothes; the Pearson [sic] Foundation, cribs, strollers, walkers, and
car seats; Friends of the Library, books; Women Helping Women, teapots, cups,
and saucers for their fundraiser. Also wanted to mention how much we appreciate
the services of Aloha Shares from whom we have received furniture, carpets, and
small appliances.
All this is done on a small annual budget of $150,000 a year. I doubt if you can
find any agency anywhere who can do so much on such a small operating budget.
Thank you again, Council Members, for supporting our mission and encouraging
us to grow. We could not have done this without your support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not really a question, but I want to say congratulations
and thank you for taking a challenge and really you're an amazing woman.
MS. ST. JAMES: Thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I am so excited about your thrift store. You've done such
a great job with it. Thank you for all you do.
MS. ST. JAMES: Thank you. Thank you for your support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Matt Daniells, followed by Linda Kauhane.
MR. DANIELLS: Good evening, Members of Council. You all know me, Matt
Daniells. You met my daughter earlier — Acacia. My family has been through
some challenging times the last two couple of years and my teenager has as well.
But her association with the Keiki Kokua Thrift Store has actually made a great
positive change in her life and thus ours. So I can say is whatever funding
is necessary for them please, please approve it because they're doing a great job.
I've been personally so touched by Jim and Alda and what they do that I'm
spearheading a project through Upcountry Rotary Club to assist them with the
fabrication of a sign for the...for the thrift store and that's been my pet project.
I'm giving my time and my own money to do that because I really think what
they're doing is such a great thing. So please if, if it's possible, give them more
money because they, you know, this, this, this...it's helping my teen and I know it
can help other teens. You know, this County needs more teen programs,
especially for the troubled teens. So please keep giving the way you have been
and if possible, give more. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Matt. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much. Linda Kauhane, followed by Zara Stodder.
MS. KAUHANE: Aloha and good evening, Council Members. My name is Linda D.
Kauhane. I am the President of the Board of Directors of Keiki Kokua. It is a
privilege for me to be here this evening to represent Keiki Kokua, which means in
Hawaiian, help the children. The County of Maui's assistance allows Keiki
Kokua to continue its very important mission of helping to provide support
services to the large number of foster families and caregivers residing on the
Island of Maui.
These services include assisting adopted children, providing legal guardianship,
and kinship care information and providing assistance to address the special needs
of foster families. All of these services offered by Keiki Kokua are free of
charge. The Hawaii Department of Human Services which places abused and
neglected children into licensed foster homes has determined that all children
and/or youth living in these homes are considered special needs. This definition
includes, but is not limited to specific learning . . .(change tape, start 3B). . .
disabilities and disorders, perceptual disability, behavior problems, and severe
emotional disturbances.
Keiki Kokua's foster care programs and services are essential factors that allow
all of Maui County foster families to remain together. Keiki Kokua's programs
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provide a solid alternative to homelessness on Maui. Clients who use our Kokua
Line receive immediate assistance. Keiki Kokua's job training opportunities for
the disadvantaged teens and adults who work in our thrift store have demonstrated
positive outcomes because some of these individuals have subsequently been
successful in obtaining employment opportunities in the competitive job market.
The Keiki Kokua Thrift Store is proud to be an established contributor to the
entire Maui County foster care community. Many people who's shopped and
donated to our store wholeheartedly support our mission and goals which in turn
significantly contribute to the positive lifestyle changes for each of our clients.
I've brought this evening our book of customer, customer comments and I would
like to share a few with you. One person writes, "much aloha and to a great
crew," and I can't tell who wrote it but apparently...it's Ann and Betty it looks
like. "I love your store, great for Haiku, your prices are very reasonable, thanks";
"many mahalos for all of your good efforts here — the children are our future";
"thank you for opening a community-based store, this is what I was looking for as
a former foster child, I respect and appreciate what you do, thanks." Another
person writes, "what a fabulous cause, I know how hard everyone works." And
Ms. Baisa this is for you because I, I, I, I don't mean to embarrass our Executive
Director but she works very hard. And one person wrote this item and it says,
"the cashier and Executive Director are simply lovely" and I agree.
. . .(laughter). . . Thank you.
Honorable Council Members, on behalf of Keiki Kokua, I respectfully ask that
you continue to support our programs and services. Keiki Kokua is destined to
become a role model for positive change in the lives of our foster children. Thank
you very much and we do appreciate all of your assistance. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MS. KAUHANE: Have a good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Zara Stodder, followed by Jim St. James. Where's
your bag, Jim?
MS. STODDER: Hi. Good evening. My name is Zara Stodder and I'm here to add my
voice and speak for the numerous individuals and families whose lives have been
changed and touched by... thanks to the help programs and support that Keiki
Kokua offers. It helped me and my family through the tough and unpredictable
times by giving me an opportunity to work for the Welfare to Work Program.
Through the program I was able to get a job and become independent and also
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involved with the community in a positive way. Keiki Kokua is one of...one of
its kind store in the Upcountry region. It makes it possible especially for the
needy families struggling to make ends meet afford basic things such as furniture,
TVs, blankets, kitchenware, lots of educational books and toys for the children at
prices they can afford. Please continue to support the efforts and dedication of the
people that make Keiki Kokua as many families and foster children depend on the
goodwill of the cause. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MS. STODDER: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jim St. James, followed by William Millrose [sic].
MR. ST. JAMES: Good evening, Council Members. I didn't bring any bags today. I
brought a magic wand. . . .(laughter). . . It is actually a canceling tool that many
therapists use with children and youth who have been abused, neglected,
abandoned, and have suffered various trauma. The therapists ask the youth if you
have had a magic wand, what would you create, what would you make different.
Answers vary — I do not want to be angry any more, I don't want to get in trouble
any more, I want to have a normal Christmas, I would like to stay in the foster
home I'm in and get a job and take care of myself, I want to feel like I'm part of
someone's family.
According to many studies from Child Welfare League of America, the biggest
influence on foster children's lives come from foster parents. Forgiveness,
healing, inspiration, and hope are concepts that come to life under the roof of
foster homes. With your support Keiki Kokua has helped many foster parents
bring back the magic into the lives of disadvantaged children and the youth in
their care. Also, with your support, you created some magic for Keiki Kokua.
We have expanded our programs, increased direct services to foster children
donated by local businesses, and now we have a pick-up with Mike's help. Now
that's real magic on Maui. Maui Toyota donated us a pick-up and now
we...we're really expanding. Keiki Kokua makes magic happen from every bit of
funding that we, you know, we received and we thank you for your past support,
and please remember to keep the magic flowing this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jim. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thanks, Jim, for all that you and Alda have done. You
know, it's incredible how the organization has grown for the betterment of our
community. And for the recognition on the... all I did was just something small.
But are you able to share with who donated the truck to you?
MR. ST. JAMES: Yes. Maui Toyota donated a Chevy 2004 pick-up for us about two
weeks ago.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thanks. I just wanted the community to know. It's
part of the challenge that you're facing. Thank you, Jim.
MR. ST. JAMES: Okay. Would anybody like the wand for this weekend?
. . .(laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Give it to Joe.
MR. ST. JAMES: You might need it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is William Millrose kid, oh, Ross...Millross,
followed by Bruce Mizel. William? Bruce Mizel.
MR. MIZEL: Good evening, Council Chair and Council Members. I've come here this
evening to speak on behalf of Community Work Day and I've...I understand that
their budget has been cut like everyone else's budget during the tough economic
times by $25,000. And I fully understand that. I guess primarily what I'm asking
for is that no more money be cut from their fund. These folks are very dedicated,
hardworking individuals. I've had the opportunity to work side-by-side with them
and plan on continuing to do so. They do a wonderful job, and you know, it's,
it's, it's a pleasure to know that there are folks that really do care quite a bit about
the aina here on, on the island and take not only Monday through Friday, but you
know, on weekends as well. They're very, very dedicated workers. In some
instances I think the community doesn't realize what effort they, they do put in,
and would greatly appreciate considering no further budget cuts.
I also have one other...one other thought and it's unrelated to Community Work
Day but it is basically with curbside recycling. You know, I feel that if curbside
recycling is implemented, it would actually save quite a bit of money. Any time
that we can divert any type of product from being landfilled is not only a, you
know, a savings, but it's the right thing to do. And I definitely, you know, ask of
your thoughts and efforts and so forth to greatly consider curbside recycling. I
think the sooner the better. We live on a small island. There are other places, you
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know, in the world that do practice this and not only is it the right thing to do, but
it's also quite cost effective. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again, Bruce. Dick Mayer, followed by Gerry Ross.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much, Council Members. Thank you for staying so long
and for coming Upcountry. I do think there's a mistake the Mayor made in the
Budget. She forgot to put in the overtime for the Council Members.
. . .(laughter). . . One and a half...time and a half should be put in there. I want
to do two other topics. One is something that hasn't been talked about tonight and
that's revenue sources.
Hold back on looking...I'll do the thing you're all looking at first then.
Upcountry bus route — Heather Morgan mentioned it, other people have
mentioned it. There is a need to have a bus that goes through the Kula
community. If you look at the map, the long one there, you'll see a route there
that goes from Pukalani Terrace, right across the street here, all the way out to
Kula Hospital. It's a route that we drove on, we marked off, we have bus stops to
take place on either side of the road. In some case, we see one dot, it means that's
the same place. For example, the Kula Post Office would probably in both
directions the same spot. The Kula Community Center would be a place where
people could park and pick up the bus and, and have park and drive...park and
ride type of situation.
The bus schedule, if you look at the paper with all the numbers on it, if you look
at that one for me, please, you'll see there the route that it would take from the
Pukalani Terrace down to the Kula Hospital on that small map. And what we'd
like to do is have it synchronized with the bus that comes from Kahului up to
Pukalani Terrace. That bus arrives every hour and a half up here at the Terrace
and we think that we could have a route that would go all the way down to the
hospital and back in about 86 minutes. So in other words about two minutes after
the bus arrived here at the Terrace from down country, it would be able to go all
the way down_ to the hospital, turn around, and make its way back here with the
routes that you see, the stops that you see suggested there. And then the people
could catch the next bus going down country. This would provide a very smooth
transition all the way through because then people from Upcountry, Kula area
could make it all the way down to jobs in...not only Kahului/Wailuku but
connecting up at the shopping center at Kaahumanu with buses that go all over to
the rest of the island.
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We recognize that this is a very expensive item to add to your budget in a year
that you're probably going to have to do some cutting, but we also would like to
see that you ask the Department of Transportation. I've talked to Mr. Medeiros in
the DOT about this, and you know, he mentioned the cost and he said obviously
it's up to the Council. If money is appropriated, that you put aside some money to
plan this. Now whether that means applying for Federal grants that you actually
conduct the survey and see how much it would cost to get the service going.
Maybe it wouldn't run quite as many routes. Maybe it wouldn't even run
Saturdays and Sundays. Whatever it would be that would be possible to begin
extending the service up here. As Heather mentioned earlier, there are many
elderly who could use this if they knew that it was dependable service going
through the community. Students — this bus would stop at both the Longs here as
well as the high school which is where Carden Academy, King K, Kamehameha,
all schools would be able to use it as well as going to Kula School. This would be
an extreme use to young people, teenagers who may want to go down country
now who can't go who's sort of isolated up here and be unable to get to jobs and
other recreational activities down country — sports events, et cetera. So this is
something that would be very much needed.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MR. MAYER: Let me just add one other thing and that is regarding revenue. This is
not, not...what I'm going to talk about next is nothing to do with the buses. With
regard to the property tax, I would urge the Council to seriously begin thinking of
a progressive property tax. You will need to raise revenues and what I'm going to
suggest is and these aren't the right numbers. That's one thing I would urge you
to ask your Staff to come up with. How much revenue would you get if let's, and
I'm going to use the base number now, let's say a house now is $2 per 1,000.
What would happen if you said, okay, houses between 500,000 and 800,000
assessed valuation would be $3; and between let's say 800,000 and 1 million,
per 1,000; and et cetera up so that by some time you get to a $10 million house
they may pay $9 per 1,000. Progressive tax — how much revenue would you get
and would that be a useful way? Because I think somebody who owns an $8
million house in wherever it might be on the island more than likely would be
able to afford an $8 or $9 per 1,000 tax. And at the same time, you would still
probably keep the property tax exemption for homeowners that you now have. So
please ask your Staff how much...how many houses do we have that are in those
upper brackets and I would be glad to work with any of you if you want me to
help out with that. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Mayer? I just got
one. When you say 86 minutes from Kula Hospital to across the street?
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MR. MAYER: It would be 86 minutes to go from the Pukalani Shopping Center out to
the hospital would take...with the stops would take roughly 40, let's say 42 or 43
minutes. Stop two minutes at the hospital and make 43 minutes back again — 86
minutes roundtrip.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. So it's a roundtrip.
MR. MAYER: So that would exactly synchronize with the buses coming up here from
down country.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Mayer? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gerry Ross, followed by Ernest Rezents.
MR. ROSS: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for staying late this evening. My
name is Gerry Ross and I grow coffee, pineapple, taro, sweet potatoes, and about
40 different kinds of fruit and vegetables on our farm which is Kupaa Farm on
Naalac Road up here in Kula. All of our produce is organic and it's all sold here
to feed people on Maui. I would like to thank you for your past support which has
come to me via the Maui Coffee Association, the Maui County Farm Bureau, and
the Maui Aloha Aina Association. The Maui Coffee Association is a grassroots
nonprofit group composed of farmers, roasters, retailers, and we also have a
category for enthusiast, if you're not none of the above.
In the past year, we used funds from the County to help improve coffee and coffee
sales here on Maui by people who were growing coffee. We produced a brochure
of active coffee farms and retail outlets where you can buy Maui grown coffee
products. We hosted an annual seed to cup workshop. We're going to do another
one in about three weeks at Kula Community Center which helps farmers improve
what they're doing and grow a better cup of coffee. We've had a couple of top
notch speakers from Kona come over and be able to spend one-on-one time
working with local farmers to really improve what we're doing. We also use the
funds to help sponsor the First Annual Statewide Cupping Competition at the
Hawaii Coffee Association meeting which was held down at the Tropical
Plantation. So for the first time ever, Maui coffees went head-to-head in
professional cupping competitions with coffees from the better established Kona
District. And the good news is that we placed two coffees from Upcountry
growers in the top ten Statewide so that puts us on the map with world class brew.
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Now through the Maui County Farm Bureau I've been working with Agriculture
in the Classroom Program which is a diverse program that we do that targets
trying to get kids aware of agriculture all the way from growing their own food if
you're in the second grade all the way to looking at this as a legitimate career.
Agriculture in high school is not just something for the kolohe. This year we
were able to get to five schools of second graders which is down quite a bit — the
furlough Fridays really messed things up — but all the schools we make
presentations to the kids are absolutely enthusiastic. We also partnered with the
College of Tropical Agriculture and were able to get five school gardens started
and training of the teachers to keep those gardens going.
Finally, Maui Aloha Aina Association is the local voice for organic agriculture
and I look forward every year to their annual conferences as a way of spending
time with other local farmers, as well as international experts in the areas of soil
and human health. And these conferences provide a buzz on our farm that last
long after the tents and parking area signs are taken down at that conference. It's
a really fabulous opportunity for us.
So I thank you for all the support and realize that you do have a difficult year
ahead of you and I'm grateful for whatever support you can provide for these
organizations. And I'd like you to know that from my perspective those dollars
are very well spent in the community. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MR. ROSS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ernest Rezents, followed by Kathleen Phillips.

MR. REZENTS: Thank you very much and I applaud you for being here so late. Mike I
will not run for your position. . .(laughter). . That's a fact. All the requests
that I've heard this evening deserve your support and yet you have a limitation of
funds. I was surprised to hear and very proud that Maui County gives the most
money of all counties to nonprofits. These organizations are very much deserving
of support. They serve a very important role in our community. And I especially
applaud you for your support and would like to have you continue the Boys and
Girls Club. They are very positive. They keep our kids off the street — very
important. That MEO Preschool Program — very important. Big Brothers Big
Sisters — very important. These are the citizens of tomorrow and they need to be
taken care of.
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Now I'm not here to talk about trees, much to your surprise maybe,
. . .(laughter). . . but a nonprofit organization called Main Street Association. The
call 'em Wailuku Main Street Association but they work with Wailuku, Paia,
Haiku, Makawao, Lanai, and Molokai. And I know this is a tough year and
everybody gonna get cut, but don't cut to where an organization cannot survive.
They gotta have some money to continue through this period of hard times. Now
this organization works on behalf of communities and maintain their integrity and
help them to get through some of their problems.
For instance in the widening and improvement of Makani and Makawao Street,
they organized a meeting between Department of Public Works and the people of
various areas they impacted by the encroachment of the road for the widening
purposes and last time we met and we came to some kind of an agreement. How
can this project go and be acceptable to the community? So that's the kind of
input and organization they provide. This is much needed. No other organization
would have done that kind of work. So this is they feel a very unique position in
our community so they must be maintained. Give them something. I know
everybody is being cut but give them something to survive and I trust that you can
do that. And I applaud you for all the hours that you spend here. So maintain our
nonprofits as they serve a very important function. But don't forget the kids and
also the senior citizens. Not me, I can take care of myself, but the many others
who need your help. Thank you very much. Good night and go home to your
families.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Rezents. I guess there's no questions for you.
Any questions, Members? Thank you. Kathleen Phillips, followed by Yarrow
Flower.
MS. PHILLIPS: My name is Kathleen Phillips. I'm President from AARP Kula and I'd
just like to before I start thank you for the time that you put into all what you do
and for being here with us tonight and giving us an opportunity to share with you
our concerns. I'm the President of AARP and I work with a lot of seniors. My
biggest concern is on the bus transportation. I have seniors that do volunteer
work for the library, for Kaunoa, that rely on the bus services. I have a senior that
is sight-impaired and she does this type of volunteer work. It is so important for
our seniors that this does not get cut.

I look at the Budget and I see Upcountry from four times a week to one time a
week and for down country...downtown it's a...they have a little bit more.
However, I think it should be a little bit more reversed because Upcountry
Pukalani, I'm a Pukalani resident — hello — we have one bus stop, okay. It's right
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here. There's no place else that it goes. So for the seniors who have difficulty
walking — I've got three herniated discs and I struggle — but I have seniors that are
with wheelchairs or with canes so we need that buses, especially the ones that
take them to the doctor. You know, they have like other people have shared, they
have relatives some of them but they work. They can't be there and how many
doctors now don't work on Saturdays. So if this is cut, we are taking away from
the people that need so I really ask that you consider that. I also ask for
Upcountry that they look at extending the routes in Pukalani. At least in
Makawao it goes from so many spots and then there's a bus stop, but for us we
just have here. And we have so many hills, whatever, so it impairs us to get to the
bus, okay. That's a big concern for me. So I ask for that.
I also ask that you take into consideration the club excursions from three times a
year to zilch. This is a concern for me because I'm the President of AARP. Our
seniors don't have much when it comes to coming together. Once a month we get
together and three times a year we take them on an excursion. That's not that
much to ask I think. Even if they said two times a year I would say, okay, we all
gotta move in a little bit. But to go zilch, that's I think not helpful for my seniors
because without excursions, without coming together we deteriorate, and that's a
concern for me and that's why I give my time. My husband and...my husband's a
deacon and Al and I have been there. We support our seniors and our...the
people out there. We've taken how many people to the...to the doctors.
Whatever the need is we've tried to do it. But you know what? We haven't even
touched the top of it and that's why we know that without the bus service we're
dead.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MS. PHILLIPS: Thank you so much. And also I've been a Big Sister for years and I had
my Littles, two parents were blind, and the support that the Bigs and Big Brothers
and Big Sisters do for these type of people, it's unbelievable. You keep these kids
off the streets. Drugs are so out there and without Big Brothers and Big Sisters,
where do the kids go? We're there to support, but Big Brothers Big Sisters can't
do it all. They need your support too. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mrs. Phillips? Thank you,
Kathy. And by the way, thank you for volunteering, you and your husband. I
know you guys volunteer a lot. Took my papers to Home Depot to be shredded.
Yarrow Flower, followed by Wayne DeLara. Yarrow? Wayne DeLara, followed
by Howard...Harold Keyser. By the way, is William Millrose [sic] around or
Millross? Okay, none. Go ahead.
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MR. DELARA: Good evening, Council Members or almost good morning.
...(laughter)... So I made it up here. My name is Wayne DeLara. I'm a
Hispanic American who has family has been here for over a century in Maui. I'm
a resident of Upcountry Maui for 29 years. I'm providing testi...testifying for
Enlace...Enlace Hispano, the Spanish link. I've heard a lot of good testimonies, a
lot of testifying on all the other programs out there. Enlace Hispano is focused on
the Hispanic community by default, but they also will...and I have seen them take
care of other ethnic backgrounds. They're basically everything that everyone
behind me that has been here and left has been speaking of. They do that and
more. Currently, they helped me in assisting my wife to come back to the United
States. I used services from Enlace Hispano as far as translating,
notarizating...notarizations of Powers of Attorney, vital records, other documents
pertinent to her case. In addition, I participate in the language and culture
exchange program and using Enlace Hispano as a central hub, if you will, to gain
information or referrals to other additional services.
So I'm not here to insult your intelligence. I know you guys know about this
program. I'm not going to read down the list of what they...the services they
provide for the community regardless of ethnicity. I'm here to make you think
about how not giving funding to this little company that's not even on the MEO
webpage. You have to google it and it magically pops up. So I wish I had that
magic wand that the other testifier had ...(laughter)... going on, but yeah,
without that funding it affects the Hispanic community and me.
To make it more clear, I'm a heavy diesel mechanic with HC&S, apprentice, and
as well as a medic in the United States Army Reserve. Without Enlace Hispano, I
would not be able to afford the services that they provide me — period. By not
funding Enlace Hispano, I mean, I know you guys aren't exactly passing the
judgment but without funding Enlace Hispano, you're telling me that you don't
want the Hispanics here. You don't want me here to thrive in Maui. You know,
if you guys don't know about this program, I encourage you guys to make it an
effort...an issue to find out more about it.
Here in Hawaii we're cutting a lot of funding to a lot of educational programs.
Enlace Hispano is an educational program for not just Hispanics but the
community. These programs are investment in our future. They should be the
last thing that we're cutting. A program like Enlace Hispano is what sets up
citizens for future success to be contributing members to our society and from
which we all can benefit. Thank you for your time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for being here this evening. . . .(change tape, start 4A). . .
Harold Keyser, followed by Rick Woodford.
MR. KEYSER: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. My name is Harold
Keyser. I'm the Chair...I mean the...I'm the County Administrator for the
College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources. I think most of you are
familiar with what we do. Basically, we bring expertise, technology, programs,
from the University of Hawaii and put them to work in Maui County in the areas
of agriculture and also in youth and family programs. And over the last few years
we've been very fortunate to receive supplemental funding from the Council from
the recommendation of the Mayor and we hope that will continue this next fiscal
year. The Mayor did submit a budget that's about 25 percent less than last year
and we ask that you, you would also consider supporting us at least at that level.
We recognize these are difficult times for everybody. And I would like to just
briefly address, you know, we are a State agency. However, the extension service
and experiment station are specifically components of the University that address
needs-based programs in the counties and that's, that's what we do.
The model that's worked throughout the US, throughout the whole nation, is this
very same thing — local funding throughout many states. In fact, in some places
paying salaries. We're very fortunate you're the only County Council that does
this in Hawaii. And we...this year we've...we had our operations has been cut by
40 percent, as well as our salary reductions and things like this, so anything that
you can help us deliver our services to the...to our clients, stakeholders, our
common constituents. Yeah, it helps the agricultural community and our youth
programs as well. And I think...I won't go through and read it, but you can see
there's a variety of programs in agriculture, animal services, the whole spectrum
of agriculture that we provide technical back stopping for.
And we would also like to encourage you to support our partners, which we also
deliver programs with in common areas, the Farm Bureau, Maui Flower Growers
Association, Maui Invasive Species Committee, and the Watershed Partnerships.
And thank you again for all your support of the past years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Harold. Members, question for the testifier?
Seeing none...oh, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Keyser, thank you for being here and for your
testimony. In what way, does CTAHR enable to help the invasive species
problem we have?
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MR. KEYSER: Well, in a couple of ways. I guess most directly one of the last hires in a
College of Tropical Agriculture probably for a few years was a specialist...a
Statewide Specialist in invasive species, Dr. James Leary, and he is stationed up
at the Kula Research Station, and he coordinates with the Invasive Species
Committee, with the Watershed Partnerships. We also have our animal
production specialist, John Powley. He's worked on gorse and fireweed control
and we also for several years have provided our facilities for the...for the home
for Maui Invasive Species Committee and the East Maui Watershed Partnership.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you very much for the work you do to help
us control invasive species. Mahalo.
MR. KEYSER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Rick Woodford, followed by Henry Lau.
MR. WOODFORD: Good evening and thank you for waiting for us. You guys got a
tough job. Everybody that I've heard tonight — I've been here the whole time —
they all are valuable, good things, you know, that need support, and I, I really
bless you for doing this. I'm the founding volunteer President of the Maui
Recycling Group. I've been doing it for 20 years. I was also a member of the
County Council Solid Waste Resource Advisory Council and we did the
Federally-mandated plan for solid waste.
I'd like to tonight commend you guys and commend one of your own sections
rather than a nonprofit that needs help or anything else. But I think the recycling
section of Maui County has done an incredible job to grow the amount of
resources that we keep out of the landfill. Thousands and thousands of tons of
stuff has been able to stay out of the landfill and we're all real proud of that. And
I think I'm here tonight to just say please continue supporting the recycling
section, curbside, drop boxes, Molokai is important right now, the eco-compost.
All these things they are great programs and they really deserve as much support
as they can get. That's all for tonight. Thanks you guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Henry Lau, followed by Cheryl Ambrosie
...Ambrosia [sic].
MR. LAU: It's way past my bedtime, you know. . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ours, too.
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MR. LAU: Thank you for being patient. My name is Henry Lau and I live in Kula, and I
just want to speak on two points, but before I do that I'll have to tell you about
myself because it directly relates to the testimony I will give. I am retired — been
more than 20 years now. I recognize Mr. Nishiki way back there. So I have a
fixed income. I am not a wealthy person, nor am I poor, but I live in Kula in a
modest home. I have just one car, one TV. It's just my wife and I and my
daughter farms the land that we have.
But tonight I just want to tell you about Point No. 1. Property taxes are too low. I
pay a minimum tax I think $150 a year, a whole year, $150. Now, my electric bill
one month, every month, it's about $150. TV, telephone, cable, it's about $150 a
month now — every month. My gas bill is way over, you know, almost $200
every month. Now, if I divide my annual property tax bill of $150 by 12 months,
you know, that means I pay $12.50. Ridiculous! Yeah, I mean if you looking for
ways to fund all these pleas you get from the community, look at the property tax.
That's a good source.
Which brings me to Point No. 2. I don't mind you raising my tax just so it's spent
wisely. You know, it's hard earned dollars. I'm on fixed income. A lot of the
people say they can't even afford a $1. I think they can but, you know,
government should provide things that we cannot provide ourselves, like Police,
Fire. We want safe, healthy communities to live in. We also need safe roads,
highways, bridges.
Point No. 2, more than two years ago, big flood came down the mountain, washed
my house down, lost two cars, damaged County roads, State roads, the whole
works. Millions of dollars lost. Today, State roads all fixed. I'm back in my
house. I have another mortgage because of the damage. But the County road is
still broken. The roads are eroded. The danger is still there. County liability is
still there. County responsibility is still there. So I see it's in the Mayor's Budget
so please don't knock it down now. Support that — add more! Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you
again, Henry, for your testimony. Cheryl Ambrosia [sic], followed by Pat Bily.
MS. AMBROZIC: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for giving me this opportunity
to speak to you tonight. My name is Cheryl Ambrozic and I'm the Executive
Director of the Maui Flower Growers Association. And I'm speaking to you
tonight to first say mahalo for your continuous support of agriculture in Maui
County and also to say mahalo for your promotion of agriculture through the
agricultural promotion grant offered through Office of Economic Development.
Because of this pool of funding, nonprofits such as Maui Flower Growers
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Association has the opportunity to go through the RFP process and to promote
programs that will help raise awareness to agriculture, in my case, Maui
floriculture industry and ways to promote the industry. And also to help our
struggling flower farmers and other farmers through educational programs and
solicitation of other grants and working with collaboration with other programs
such as like the Maui County Farm Bureau and CTAHR, et cetera, just to help our
farmers. So I just wanted to say mahalo for that and the opportunity for
nonprofits such as myself to draw from that pool. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again.
MS. AMBROZIC: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pat Bily, followed by Christopher Kasak.
MR. BILY: Big mahalo, Council, for staying so late. We really appreciate it and I think
you folks see with all the people testifying it's such a long evening, but that must
mean a lot to you that there's that many concerned folks in just the Upcountry
area willing to testify for the nonprofits. So I'm Pat Bily. I've worked with The
Nature Conservancy on Maui for the last 20 years, but I'm actually here to
represent the Watershed Partnerships and I'm Chair of the Maui Invasive Species
Committee. So I'd like to talk a little bit about those as well. And I just have to
say big kudos to Maui County because you guys probably have heard this already
but Maui County leads the way, Statewide, in conservation protection and
watershed management. . .(applause).
The first watershed partnership we sat in on 1991, The Nature Conservancy
helped steer it, but with all our other agencies with the State and the Federal
government as well as private landowners, Hana Ranch and Haleakala Ranch, and
it was a pivotal moment because it influenced watershed management on the other
islands. And the same with the Maui Invasive Species Committee, we had kind of
a hybrid version of that in the early 90s and it evolved to what it is today. But
again, that would not be happening without the continued support of the Maui
County government and we really appreciate that.
So as you know, the recent cutbacks from the State severely impacted the ability
of watershed management crews and the invasive species management crews, like
the guys testified early. And you know, as Council Victorino pointed out there is
leverage money involved in that too. That's critical too. So that's why the Maui
County money is so important. We really appreciate help 'cause in the long run
we're really getting radical cutbacks from the State and it is going to impact our
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work. We have to reprioritize and just pick and choose the best we can to manage
the money.
But I do have to say that we all know — I know I'm being redundant here — but
reduced water resources is just going to impact agriculture and the Upcountry
lifestyle; residents waiting in line for water meters and businesses suffering, and
this relates directly to the money. The positive development of the housing
market affected because of property sales — people not being able to build. So the
decreasing property taxes, I know that's been mentioned, but you know, we need
water. Beyond anything else we need water to move forward with any of these
other nonprofits. It's the most critical thing.
So again, I just say mahalo for all your previous support and I hope that you
understand that keeping these projects going, not going backwards, but at least
keeping us maintained to the progress we've made already I think is really
important. And you know with the Maui Invasive Species Committee there's
been a lot of progress made on a lot of the targets we've been after for years. The
coqui frog problem is getting down there now. I mean it's taken years of effort
for that success but we don't want to set...stop dead in our tracks because we'll
be taking one step forward and two steps backwards. So again, Council, mahalo.
We appreciate your efforts and whatever you can do to continue with the funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MR. BILY: Okay. Thank you for protecting the watershed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Christopher Kasak, followed by Nancy Johnson.
MR. KASAK: Hello, County Council Members, Finance Budget, and Staff, thank you
for hearing our complaints coming Upcountry and meeting us halfway. As I think
some other testifiers have noted it is, well, transportation's an issue up here for a
lot of us. And there's a lot of issues on the table that some days you gotta make
some hard choices so I think we can all relate, you know, are we going to be able
to afford to take our kids to school.
Tonight I'm here on behalf of my girlfriend, Cecily Overton, who is at home with
our three teenagers. One her legal ward, who is one of the special needs kids that
had been mentioned tonight and our two hanai, adopted teenagers. We're
working on making it .. .(inaudible). . . but in the meantime we've been pulling it
pretty much on our own. And that brings me to why I was invited to or reminded
that you guys would be here and come out and speak for the Maui Economic
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Opportunity Rental Assistance Program, which really helped us through a tight
time.
We were living in a place that was one of the four or one out of four homes in
America...I don't know if you guys are aware are currently under foreclosure,
different bank ownership issues, and it affects a lot of people. We got some pretty
short notice and when no one else was there for us...I'm a transplant, I've only
been out here three years so I don't have the family or support infrastructure
besides this hanai unit. Well, we were able to have a program that we could go to
to help us take a breath and look at our budgetary needs and patterns and
behaviors, analyze that, and help us through these transition months gradually
easing off. Things that will help us in the long term.
And I think that's what I'd like to urge you all to keep in mind while keeping a
close eye to the intricacies of the budgetary, you know, whole thing. You really
want to look to where they're going because tonight we are all here sort of
elbowing for our shares of an ever diminishing pie, and all the while there's some
guys outside the window who are just ready to snatch it out from under us getting
a free ride. I'm talking to corporate welfare and this County has some of the
highest millionaire occupancy ratios. I think these property tax ideas could really
come in while a lot of us are, you know, struggling for crumbs. So it just makes
very little sense to me to even put on the table...I know you guys are kind of
blindsided like a lot of us with this. But it's a surprise, but not a shock. We know
these things are coming and these bigger underlying issues that affect our
infrastructure will still be in play. So once again thank you for being here tonight.
I'll answer any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MR. KASAK: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Nancy Johnson, followed by Steve Goldstein.
MS. JOHNSON: I'm Nancy Johnson. I'm from the University of Hawaii, Maui College
now, and I thank you very much for being here. I want to thank you for your
support. I want to tell you that with your support in 2009 we graduated 46
registered nurses, 71 practical nurses, 195 nurse aides, 16 dental assistants. We
provided 1,000 patient visits a month at the Maui Oral Health Center, 300 patient
visits at our Dental Van. In 2010, we will graduate 69 registered nurses. In 2011,
10 dental hygienist. So the College has really benefitted from your support.
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But I need to tell you that we can't stop now. There's five things that affect the
number of healthcare workers the community needs and all five of 'em are
impacted in Maui County. The first one is the population and the population's
projected to grow 42 percent by 2030. The age of the population — HMSA
predicts that by 2030, 20 percent of our County will be over 65. The number of
elderly is a big factor in the number of healthcare providers you need. Maui
County currently has the fewest nurses per 1,000 population of any county. It
also has the fewest healthcare workers and social assistance workers of any
county in Hawaii.
All of Maui County...I have a diagram, but all of Maui County is a health
profession shortage area — you probably know that. Also, I gave you a diagram
that shows the age of nurses at HHSC which is our hospital. Only 26 percent of
the nurses are younger than 40. So the fifth factor is the age of the healthcare
providers. So...and a really good thing that's happened in my mind is healthcare
reform. But with healthcare reform we're definitely going to need more nurses
because we're going to have more people needing healthcare. So I'm asking you
to continue to support for the nursing and dental programs at Maui College.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Nancy, for being here this evening.
One quick question. You know, in light of the statistics that you gave us about
the need for nurses, are our graduates finding jobs?
MS. JOHNSON: Okay, that's a really good question. You know that the college because
of the Board of Regents rule we only take Hawaii residents. Well, we have to
take qualified Hawaii iesidents first and we have way more qualified applicants.
It is true, Gladys, that in the last six months our graduates for the first time have
not had a job before they took their licensing exam, and we have some of our
registered nurses who are working as practical nurses in their first six months.
But that's...this is very, very temporary. West Maui is going to build a new
hospital. They're talking about maybe building something in Kihei. I believe that
this is a very temporary situation. But it is true that...I mean 18 months ago our
graduates all had jobs before I took 'em to Kapiolani in the last week of school
because Oahu hospital didn't want Oahu to pick 'ern up. So it's temporary.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just wondered if nursing was being impacted like
everything else and I guess it is. But it should be temporary — it'll come back. I
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mean we're always going to need nurses and these guys are going to retire so
more so.
MS. JOHNSON: Well, that's right. And I think one thing that's happened is a lot of
working nurses who are past retirement age are not retiring because the men in
their family are not working. And so they're staying in their jobs and so the
minute the economy changes, they're going to retire. We're going to have...1
mean we're going to have a huge shortage. There's no question about it. We're
just at this edge.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Lucienne deNaie. Following Lucienne would be
Earl Lamadora.
MS. DENAIE: Good evening, this late evening. My name is Lucienne deNaie. I'm an
East Maui resident taking advantage of the fact that you folks are here Upcountry
tonight and I don't have another meeting tonight. I'm supporting in...I'm
supporting a number of things that are in the Budget that helped organizations
which are creating a long range savings. Some of these things are Community
Work Day. Community Work Day Program really cuts the cost of keeping our
roads, beaches, parks, and communities clean. They really leverage the support
you give them around a 10 to 1 match and I can testify firsthand they tackle jobs
no one else wants like the Hana Highway cleanup all the way from Huelo to
Hana. I mean people were pulling stuff out of the bushes to have a chance to get
rid of it, and these are tractors in our neighborhood. You know they're not boxes
or barrels or nothing — they're big.
I also want to support our East Maui Watershed Partnership and our Maui
Invasive Species Committee. Both of these organizations also leverage funds.
They are a thin, green line to protect the integrity of our watersheds and help us
knock out or control alien invasives before the problems and the cost grow. So
better to invest upfront than to have to like spend a lot of money after the fact
trying to, you know, take care of problems that really didn't have to exist. Thank
God these, these young men and women are up there doing this job.
Also, the need for support. I saw in your Budget that the Waikamoi Flume and
the new storage facility are having their planning money. Thank you very much.
You really need to invest in our water infrastructure and make sure there's a
reliable water supply for Upcountry and we need to use all of the different
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methodologies including storage, including getting rid of leaky systems,
including, you know, new wells, and so forth and so on in order to have enough
water for our farmers and our residents Upcountry. So mahalo for your foresight.
Along that same line, I testify in support of the needed improvements to our
wastewater treatment facilities that will allow more use of reclaimed water. I
noticed the UV channel for Kihei; a number of other improvements for Lahaina.
Just some good things are in there. These, too, are going to free up water. It's
amazing how much potable water is being used to water, you know, basically
landscape features. I guess what? Thirty thousand... 300,000 gallons a clay at the
Grand Wailea. We heard the Planning Commission hearing. They'd love to have
non-potable water down there. So that's in the budget over the next couple years
to get that line going in the right direction. And they're willing to chip in, too, so
that's another case of something where the whole cost doesn't have to be
government.
I'd also like to support the funds for the materials recovery facility. This is
something that we've heard about for a long time. Another great investment that
pays off by extending the life of our landfill and creating jobs and business
opportunities.
MR. GEERS: Three minutes.
MS. DENAIE: Thank you. The Baldwin Avenue greenway — another great project. And
I would like to testify in support of restoring funds for Akaku to film the various
boards and commissions. This is a minimum investment in having a transparent
government process and accountability. There's a value in all of our community
plans and our recently adopted Countywide Policy Plan that says we really want
to make government accessible to people and allow them to be involved. Well,
people work and can't go to these meetings but they can schedule them anytime
on TV if they're filmed and they can see any ones they want. So please support
that.
And also, the buses. We've got to have a pass you could get online. We've got to
keep the pass. The bus system is working. Let's find a way to keep it working.
You've heard from people. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Earl Lamadora, followed by Olivia Coletti.
MR. LAMADORA: Good evening. My name is Earl Lamadora and I'm here to testify
for the MEO transportation. A few years ago my mom started with Alzheimer's
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and decided to walk away from my house and the aid of MEO came, well, it took
a while. I got her in a program called the Maui Adult Daycare Center and the
MEO bus comes up and picks her up. Now without that bus coming up there I
would have to drive down every single day to Kahului and back and that leaves
my job...I have to leave my job for an hour and a half to do that. MEO provides a
lot of things for the community, especially also for the children, the Youth Bank,
which was here in full force, and the one for the small kids. Give them the
money. They need it, give 'em to them, . . .(laughter). . . especially for that kind.
And for the senior citizens, give it to them because without them we wouldn't be
here today. Remember now — our senior citizens. My mother is 82 years old and
she was here tonight. I had to take her home. Without them we couldn't be here,
and we have to take care of our youth. They arc our future. And also I wanted to
point out to you with the budget being so very thin when you look outside there,
do you see any lights? I don't think so. Here's the light, here's the tree. Thank
you. We don't want another lawsuit. Have a wonderful evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you, Earl.
MR. LAMADORA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Olivia Coletti. Olivia. John Tavares. Dave DeLeon. Okay,
Members, we've got one more after Dave.
MR. DELEON: Good evening or good morning, whichever it is. .. .(laughter).. . 1
tried a new strategy this time. I decided to come late and see, you know, it
couldn't be that late. Oh, boy, but that didn't work. . . .(laughter)... That didn't
work at all.
Dave DeLeon speaking for the REALTORS Association of Maui. The
REALTORS Association of Maui understands the situation you're in — the tough
budget you're facing. While it's true that everyone is going to have to pitch in
and share in the burden of this Budget overcoming the shortfalls, our association
believes that the burden should be fair... should be shared fairly. The tax rate
proposed by the Mayor for the commercial residential properties is clearly not
fair. The proposed tax rate is 6.25, higher than the rate for commercial properties.
That rate implies that a B&B with a couple rooms for rent for short term or a
ohana is more valuable and more intensive a use than a property that is fully
zoned for commercial use.
By law, B&B has to be the owner's home. . . .(change tape, start 4B). . . They
have to live there. A portion...only a portion of the property can be used for
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commercial activity. The owner cannot even take a vacation and the owner is not
allowed to sell the equity that they've built up in the business as an ordinary
commercial property owner could. Given all that, how could a B&B be worth
more than a commercial-zoned property?
Our association is concerned that this lack of fairness will torpedo a year's worth
of effort this Council and the broader community put in to creating the B&B
ordinance. Few will go through the effort to... it takes to open a B&B if the profit
they're going to make is soaked up instead by taxes. Our concern is that this new
tax rate will discourage B&B owners from coming forward and getting their
operating permit. If the tax structure forbids them from making a fair profit or
worse it taxes them out of their home, then they will remain underground or they
will...or they will go out of business.
All B&B owners are, by law, homeowners. But they have already given...they
have already given up their homeowner's exemption. This rate compounds that
impact by quadrupling their tax bill. An analysis by the MVRA shows that the
per room tax for an average medium-sized hotel on Maui is about $750. Under
the proposed rate, the per room tax for an average B&B would be $1,600.
This commercial...this Commercial Residential class is made up of about 50
homeowners. Even at this inflated rate, their projected share of the County's tax
load will be tiny...a tiny fraction of the County's half-billion dollar Budget. That
means an adjustment in this case will not throw the Budget out of balance and we
ask the Council do what's fair for this new class of property owners. Thanks you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Dave. Members, any questions for Mr. DeLeon?
Seeing none, thank you again.
MR. DELEON: Thank you. I really appreciate you guys hard work. I think it's
amazing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The last testifier signed up is Ann Carter.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She left.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: She left. Okay, is there anyone that want to provide public
testimony that haven't signed up? If not, Members, I just want to thank you for
being here tonight and also the people that came up to testify on behalf of the
Mayor's 2011 Budget.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So at this time, the Chair is going to adjourn this meeting.
Meeting is adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion. (Excused: JAJ and DAM)

ADJOURN: 10:32 p.m.
APPROVED:

JOSEPH AONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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